
 

 
 

Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central 
Washington 

 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
 

Confluence Technology Center 

285 Technology Center Way, Wenatchee WA 

Methow & Teanaway River Rooms 

or 
Zoom Virtual Conference Room Option 

 

Meeting Agenda 

August 22nd, 2023 

9:00 am 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
*Note: When the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting is called to order, the 

Port of Chelan County and Port of Douglas County meetings are simultaneously called to 

order. 

 

II. INTRODUCTIONS 

 
III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 

• CDRPA:  Approval of the August 8th, 2023 Meeting Minutes and the July 2023 
Commission Calendar.  

 

VI. PRESENTATIONS  
• Dan Frazier – Chelan County PUD – 5th Street Redevelopment  

 
VII. POCC ACTION ITEMS (Public Comment Opportunity) 

(1) POCC Resolution No. 2023-02 Operating Line of Credit  
(2) Relinquishment of Option to Purchase – Chelan County PUD Property  

 
VIII. CDRPA ACTION ITEMS (Public Comment Opportunity) 

(3) Operating Line of Credit Concurrence 

(4)   Cooling Water Agreement – Microsoft    

(5) Engineering Service Agreement – Cooling Water/RH2 Engineers System  

(6) Purchase and Sale Agreement – Lytle Property (Pangborn Airport)  

(7) Purchase and Sale Agreement – Baker Property (Malaga) 

(8) Authorization to Seek Bids – Malaga Vicinity Test Well 1 Pump Test   

(9) City of Entiat – Partners in Economic Development Funding Request  

 

 



 
(10) Streamline Fulfillment – Lease Renewal  

(11) Frito Lay – Lease Renewal 

 
IX. SUGGESTED BREAK: 10 MINUTES (APPROXIMATELY 10:30 AM) 

• Tour of CTC Third Floor  
 

X. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Board may act on any items listed)  

     (12)    2023 National Brownfields Training Conference – Recap  
     (13)    TakeOff North America 2023 Conference - Recap 

     (14)    Child Care Partnership Grant – Washington Department of Commerce 
     (15)    Weather Radar Issue  

 
XI. MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS 

• CEO 
• Director of Finance & Administration 

• Director of Airports 

• Director of Economic Development & Capital Projects 
• Community Relationship Manager 

• Property & Maintenance Manager 
• CTC Manager 

 
XII. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
XIII. REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

 

XIV. ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION: An Executive Session may be called during the meeting.  The 

purpose must be announced and is limited by RCW 42.30.110.  Examples include: (1) to 
discuss with legal counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks (RCW 
42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when 

public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price 
(RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); and (3) to consider the minimum price at which real estate will be 
offered for sale or lease when public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a 
likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or leasing public property shall be taken in a 

meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); and (4) to evaluate the qualifications of 
an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public employee(RCW 
42.30.110(1)(g) 

 

XVI.      ADJOURN 
 

 

 

 

PLEASE NOTE:  The agenda is tentative only. The Board of Directors may add, delete, or postpone items and may 

take action on any item not on the agenda (This does not apply during a Special Meeting). The Directors may also 

move agenda items during the meeting. If you wish to address the Regional Port Authority on a non-agenda or an 

agenda item, please raise your hand to be recognized by the President.  When you have been recognized, give 

your name and address before your comments. The Board of Directors are committed to maintaining a meeting 

atmosphere of mutual respect and speakers are encouraged to honor this principal. 

 

The Port Authority office is ADA compliant. Please contact the Administrative Office at 509-884-4700 at least three 

(3) days in advance if you need any language, hearing or physical accommodation.  



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes August 8th, 2023 Page 1 of 6 

  

  
                   

 

           Board of Directors 

 Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

   Meeting Minutes 
  August 8th, 2023 

9:00 am 
       

          Present: 
 

Directors:       

Donn Etherington, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director    
Jim Huffman, Director     Mark Spurgeon, Director    
JC Baldwin, Director     Richard DeRock, Director    

      
      

Staff:       

Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer  Tricia Degnan, CTC Manager 
Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin Colby Goodrich, FBO Mngr. (Zoom)   
Trent Moyers, Director of Airports   Laura Camarillo-Reyes, Admin. Asst. (Zoom)   
Stacie de Mestre, Dir. of Econ Dev.  Julie Avis, Acct. Specialist (Zoom) 

Ron Russ, Maint. & Prop. Mngr.   Lorena Amador, Acct. Specialist (Zoom) 
            

      

Legal Counsel:       

Quentin Batjer, Davis Arneil Law Firm LLP      
      

      
Guests:       
Mike Mackey     Dave Mitchell, Ardurra 
Mark Botello, City of Entiat   Emily Thornton, Wenatchee World 

Renee Swearingen, Entiat Chamber  Jason Taylor, KPQ (Zoom) 
Kirk Duncan, SBDC  
     

 

 
 

 
 

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board Meeting was called to order at 9:00 
a.m.  

 
Introductions were made.  

 
Conflicts of Interest: None 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: An opportunity for public comment was provided. No public comments 

were received.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes August 8th, 2023 Page 2 of 6 

 
  

 CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY CONSENT AGENDA: 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of the July 11th, 2023 

Meeting Minutes, CDRPA Resolution 2023-06 Voiding Check No. 11592, May 2023 Commission 
Calendar, June 2023 Commission Calendar, Approval of the Calendar of Events, and Check 

Register Pages 2023-29 through 2023-34, including Electronic Transfers was presented.    
 

 

Motion No.  08-01-23 CDRPA 

Moved by:    JC Baldwin  

Seconded by:  W. Alan Loebsack     

To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda 

consisting of Minutes from the July 11th, 2023 Meeting, CDRPA 

Resolution 2023-06 Voiding Check No. 11592, May 2023 Commission 

Calendar, June 2023 Commission Calendar, Approval of the Calendar of 

Events, and Check Register Pages 2023-29 through 2023-34, including 

Electronic Transfers.  

 

        Motion Passed 6-0  

                            

 PORT OF DOUGLAS COUNTY CONSENT AGENDA: 
The Port of Douglas County Consent Agenda consisting of Check Register Page 2023-01 was 

presented.    
 

 

Motion No.  08-02-23 PODC 

Moved by:    Jim Huffman  

Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon    

To approve the Port of Douglas County Consent Agenda consisting of 

Check Register Page 2023-01.  

 

          Motion Passed 3-0 

 

PRESENTATIONS: 
 

Small Business Development Center – Quarterly Report 
Kirk Duncan from the Small Business Development Center (SBDC) provided an update on activity 

during the 2nd quarter of 2023.  Commissioners asked various questions. 
 

WPPA Commissioners Seminar Recap 

Commissioners Spurgeon, Baldwin and DeRock provided reports on the recently attended WPPA 
Commissioners Seminar.  They all felt it was a very beneficial conference. 

 
 

POCC ACTION ITEMS: 
 

POCC Resolution No. 2023-02 – Operating Line of Credit 
Item will be presented at the August 22, 2023 meeting as the resolution is not in final form. 

 

 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY ACTION ITEMS:  

 
Operating Line of Credit Concurrence 

Item will be presented at the August 22, 2023 meeting as the resolution is not in final form. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes August 8th, 2023 Page 3 of 6 

 
City of Entiat – Partners in Economic Development Funding Request  

Kuntz introduced the application received from the City of Entiat.  Mark Botello presented 
additional information on the project and future plans for the property. Much discussion ensued 

by Commissioners who requested that Botello provide additional information on phasing and a 
breakdown of funding by year.  

 
Property Insurance Renewal 

Lough provided a breakdown of premiums for the 2023/24 fiscal year, along with information on 

costs savings for increasing the property deductible and a ten-year history of claims.  Discussion 
ensued and the following action was taken:  

 
 

Motion No.  08-03-23 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    JC Baldwin    

  Seconded by:  W. Alan Loebsack     

To approve a higher property deductible in the amount of $25,000 for 

the upcoming renewal period of September 1, 2023 through August 31, 

2024.  

     

 

Motion passed 6-0 

 
Travel Policy Update   

Lough provided a recap of proposed amendments to the Policy and Procedures for Travel and 
Meals.  Discussion ensued and the following action was taken:  

 
 

Motion No.  08-04-23 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    Richard DeRock    

  Seconded by:  JC Baldwin    

To approve the proposed amendments to the CDRPA Travel Policy as 

presented.  

 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

Authorization to Bid – The Trades District  
Kuntz provided a high-level introduction of the Trades District project.  De Mestre reviewed the 

project schedule and bid alternates. Discussion ensued and the following action was taken:  

 
Motion No.  08-05-23 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    W. Alan Loebsack    

  Seconded by:  Richard DeRock     

To authorize the CEO to solicit bids for the Trades District project.  

 

Motion passed 6-0 

 

  

At 10:15 a.m. Commissioner Spurgeon called for a 10-minute break. 
  

Chelan Airport – FAA Grant/Apron and Taxiway Pavement Maintenance Project 

Kuntz provided additional detail regarding the crack seal and slurry seal on the Chelan Airport 
Apron and Taxiway. The FAA is funding 90%, WSDOT is funding 5%, and the remaining 5% will 

be split between the City of Chelan and the Port District at $15,632 each. Discussion ensued and 
the following action was taken:  

 
Motion No.  08-06-23 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    W. Alan Loebsack    

  Seconded by:  JC Baldwin     

To approve a $15,632 contribution from the CDRPA to the Chelan 

Airport for the Apron and Taxiway Pavement Maintenance as approved 

by the FAA and funded through the WSDOT Aviation division.  

 

Motion passed 6-0 



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes August 8th, 2023 Page 4 of 6 

 

 

Pangborn Airport – Taxiway A Realignment Revised Budget Request 
De Mestre reviewed the various change orders on the Taxiway Realignment Project.  The original 

budget was reviewed, as well as the updated budget and reduced contribution required by the 
CDRPA. Discussion ensued and the following action was taken:  

 
Motion No.  08-07-23 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    W. Alan Loebsack    

  Seconded by:  Richard DeRock    

To approve an additional 5% contingency to the overall project budget, 

with a not to exceed project cost of $21,294,180.  

 

Motion passed 6-0 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 

 
FAA 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan – Moyers reviewed the proposed Pangborn Airport 

capital improvement plan by year.  The plan was submitted to the FAA by the August 1, 

2023 deadline.  Projects were discussed by Commissioners.   
 

At 11:15 a.m. Commissioner Spurgeon called for a 10-minute break. 
 

CDRPA Investment Report – Lough reviewed investment activity for 2nd quarter and YTD 
2023.  

 
Sports Complex Public Outreach – Update 

De Mestre reported that BerryDunn has been in the Wenatchee Valley attending events for 

outreach and is receiving a significant amount of feedback. A preliminary report has been 
completed and is included in the board packet. 

 
RiverCom – Update 

De Mestre followed up on the Pacific Engineering study which determined the CTC does not 
meet Risk Category IV requirements.  It was noted that the building has no known structural 

deficiencies, and is likely classified as a Risk Category III building.  RiverCom is following up 
with other leads, although still has interest in Port assistance with building a new emergency 

response building. 

 
Child Care Partnership – Grant Application  

Kuntz provided an overview of the Child Care Grant Program and pointed out that while staff 
is busy, it is considered an important project to undertake. De Mestre gave more detail of 

the funds available as well as partners in the community that could play a role in a steering 
committee for the project.  The Board supported submitting a grant application. 

 
 

2023 CDRPA Board Retreat 

Kuntz proposed a date for the retreat, and also reviewed the agenda for past years.  After 
Board discussion, it was determined the retreat would be scheduled for Tuesday, November 

7th, 2023 to cover financial updates and planning, and an additional retreat will be scheduled 
in the spring to focus on Port direction. 

 
Cascade Public Infrastructure Fund – Update 

De Mestre provided information on the grant application and presentation to Chelan County, 
and announced the Port has been notified by the County the full $244,600 grant request has 

been awarded to the project. 
 

 

 
 



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes August 8th, 2023 Page 5 of 6 

Central Washington Regional Tech and Innovation Hub – Letter of Commitment 
De Mestre reported on a meeting recently attended at Central WA University regarding the 

potential formation of a Regional Technology and Innovation Hub in Central Washington. 
After discussion, it was determined the Port would provide a letter of support for the 

program being led by the University. 
 

  
MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS: 

 

Kuntz provided information and updates including:  
- Shared the Unified Tax Levy is still in review by the Department of Revenue, with a letter 

of comment expected by the end of the week.  
- Discussed the Port is working with the Chelan County PUD on potentially waiving the 

option to purchase agreement for the property the YMCA is in negotiations on, or possibly 
the entire 5th Street campus.  

- Reported the Governor will be in the Valley September 14th and would like to tour 
Diamond Foundry. 

 

 
Lough provided information and updates including: 

- Provided a recap of Revenue Diversion Calculations for Pangborn Airport as included in 
the board packet. 

 
 

de Mestre provided information and updates including: 
- Provided an update the Taxiway B project commenced last week. 

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: An opportunity for public comment was provided. No public comments 

were received. 
 

 
REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS:   Several dates and events were reviewed. 

 
 

ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Board of Directors provided various updates. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

Executive Session was announced at 12:52 p.m. for a period of ten minutes with no action 
anticipated at the conclusion of the session. The purpose consisted of RCW 42.30.110(1)(c) to 

consider the minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when public 
knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price (final action 

selling or leasing public property shall be taken in a meeting open to the public). Executive 
Session concluded at 1:02 p.m.  

 

Meeting reconvened in Regular Session and was immediately adjourned at 1:06 
p.m. with no action taken.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes August 8th, 2023 Page 6 of 6 

Signed and dated this 22nd day of August 2023. 

 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
  

  
 

  _________________________________ 
Mark Spurgeon, Director    Richard DeRock, Director 

 

 
    _________________________________ 

Donn Etherington, Director    JC Baldwin, Director 
 

 
__________________________________ _________________________________ 

Jim Huffman, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director 



Date Meeting Location DE RD JCB AL MS JH

7/6 Meeting w/ Mayor Fletcher Cashmere X

7/7 Commissioners Meeting - Gering, Allen, Bergren Chelan City Hall X

7/7 Meeting w/ Jim Kuntz CDRPA X

7/7 Festival of Flight Benefit Dance/Dinner CDRPA X X X*

7/8 Festival of Flight Pangborn Airport X X X

7/10 Audit Entrance Conference CDRPA X X

7/11 CDRPA Board Meeting CTC X X X X X X

7/11 Airport Way Utility Meeting CDRPA X* X*

7/13 CDTC Board Meeting CTC X

7/20 CDRPA Summer BBQ CDRPA X X X X X

7/20 Meeting w/ Sarah Deenik CDRPA X*

7/21 TREAD - Pathways Committee Wenatchee X

7/23 P'squosa Exhibit Opening Leavenworth Museum X

7/24 WPPA Commissioners Seminar Alderbrook/Union, WA X X X

7/25 WPPA Commissioners Seminar Alderbrook/Union, WA X X X

7/26 WPPA Commissioners Seminar Alderbrook/Union, WA X X X

7/27 Secretary State Hobbs Luncheon Bob's Classic X

7/27 Meeting w/ Jim Kuntz CDRPA X

7/27 30 Under 35 Award Ceremony Wenatchee Convention Center X*

7/28 Upper Valley Commissioners Meeting Big Y Café X

* denotes multiple meetings on same day

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

Board of Directors Calendar

July 2023



 

Memo 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Monica Lough  

cc: Jim Kuntz 

Date: August 22, 2023 

Re: Line of Credit 

 

Per discussion at the last Board meeting, I have been working with legal 
counsel regarding a Line of Credit (LOC) for the Port Authority.  Since the 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority was formed through an Interlocal 
Agreement, it does not have the legal capacity to take on debt.  We have 
the option to establish two separate LOC’s, with each individual Port 
District named as debtors.  To reduce legal fees, staff time, and have the 
least impact to debt capacity, the LOC has been set up exclusively through 
the Port of Chelan County, with the Regional Port Authority managing all 
transactions. 

The note has the capacity for taxable and tax-exempt draws, at different 
interest rates, depending on the use of funds.  As of July 31st, the tax-
exempt rate was 6.25%, and the taxable rate was 7.75%. 

Staff is requesting approval of the terms of the Line of Credit as provided in 
the attached Resolution prepared by K&L Gates. 



 
 
 

 
 
 

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY 
 
 

LIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION NOTE, 2023 SERIES A (TAX-EXEMPT) 
LIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION NOTE, 2023 SERIES B (TAXABLE) 

 
 
 

______________________________________ 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT COMMISSION OF THE PORT 
OF CHELAN, WASHINGTON, PROVIDING FOR THE 
ISSUANCE AND SALE OF ONE OR MORE NOTES TO 
EVIDENCE A REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT IN THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $5,000,000; 
PROVIDING THE DATE, FORMS, TERMS AND MATURITY 
OF THE NOTES; AUTHORIZING THE DESIGNATED PORT 
REPRESENTATIVE AUTHORITY TO MANAGE THE 
REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT; AND APPROVING THE 
SALE OF SUCH NOTE TO BANNER BANK. 

 
 
 
 

ADOPTED ON AUGUST 22, 2023  
 

PREPARED BY: 
 

K&L GATES LLP 
Seattle, Washington 



506909466.1  
 

 -i-   

 

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 

TABLE OF CONTENTS* 
 

 Page 
 
Section 1. Definitions................................................................................................................2 

Section 2. Authorization of the Notes .......................................................................................4 

Section 3. Prepayment ..............................................................................................................6 

Section 4. Registration ..............................................................................................................6 

Section 5. Security for the Notes ..............................................................................................7 

Section 6. Execution and Delivery of Notes .............................................................................7 

Section 7. Sale of the Notes and Authorization to Port Officials .............................................7 

Section 8. Disposition of Drawings Under the Notes ...............................................................8 

Section 9. Form of Notes ..........................................................................................................8 

Section 10. Tax Status...............................................................................................................11 

Section 11. Note Fund...............................................................................................................12 

Section 12. No Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure; Information Provided to 
the Bank .................................................................................................................12 

Section 13. Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Note ..............................................................................13 

Section 14. Severability ............................................................................................................13 

Section 15. Resolution and Laws a Contract with the Bank .....................................................13 

Section 16. Effective Date ........................................................................................................14 

 
Exhibit A - Form of Request for Draw 
Exhibit B - Commitment Letter of Banner Bank 
     
* This Table of Contents is provided for convenience only and is not a part of this resolution. 

 



506909466.1  
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PORT COMMISSION OF THE PORT 
OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON, PROVIDING FOR 
THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF ONE OR MORE NOTES TO 
EVIDENCE A REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT IN THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $5,000,000; 
PROVIDING THE DATE, FORMS, TERMS AND MATURITY 
OF THE NOTES; AUTHORIZING THE DESIGNATED PORT 
REPRESENTATIVE AUTHORITY TO MANAGE THE 
REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT; AND APPROVING THE 
SALE OF SUCH NOTES TO BANNER BANK. 

 
WHEREAS, Port of Chelan County, Washington (the “Port”), a municipal corporation of 

the State of Washington, operates cooperatively with the Port of Douglas County under an 

interlocal agreement, known as the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (“CDRPA”) 

providing for functional consolidation, operating an airport and other industrial properties, which 

properties are from time to time in need of improvement and maintenance within and as a part of 

its comprehensive plan (the “Improvements”); and 

WHEREAS, the Port Commission of the Port (the “Commission”) has determined to 

issue one or more short term notes to finance a portion of the costs of the Improvements and to 

maintain a revolving line of credit to provide financing for all or portion of additional 

Improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the Port has received the offer of the Bank to provide a revolving line of 

credit in a commitment letter dated July 31, 2023 (the “Term Sheet”) to be supported by the 

Notes authorized herein under the terms and conditions set forth in the Term Sheet and this 

resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Port is authorized by RCW 53.36.030 and Ch. 39.46 RCW to borrow 

money and issue general obligation notes payable, inter alia, from regular tax levies of the Port;  



506909466.1  
 

-2-  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PORT COMMISSION OF THE 

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON, as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions.  As used in this resolution, the following words shall have the 

following meanings, unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context. 

Applicable Spread – Tax-Exempt means 2.25% 

Applicable Spread-Taxable means .75%. 

 Bank means Banner Bank, Wenatchee, Washington. 

 Commission means the Port Commission, as general legislative authority of the Port as 

the same shall be duly and regularly constituted from time to time. 

 Designated Port Representative means either the Chief Executive Officer of the CDRPA, 

also functioning ex officio as the Executive Director of the Port or the Director of Finance. 

 Delivery Date means the date of issuance and delivery of the Notes to the Bank. 

 Director of Finance means the Director of Finance of CDRPA, also functioning ex 

officio as the Director of Finance of the Port, or any successor to the functions of her office. 

 Improvements mean capital improvements to Port facilities and as part of the capital 

budget of the Port. 

 Interest Rate means (a) with respect to the Series A Note, the Variable Rate minus the 

Applicable Spread – Tax-Exempt; provided, however, that the minimum Interest Rate with 

respect to the Series A Note is 5.50%, and (b) with respect to the Series B Note, the Variable 

Rate minus the Applicable Spread; provided, however, that the minimum Interest Rate with 

respect to the Series B Note is 7.0%.  The Interest Rate shall be adjusted on the effective date of 

any change in the Variable Rate. 

 Loan Draw Record means the administrative records kept by the Bank to record the date 

and dollar amounts of the Draws on each Note and the loan repayments made by the Port. 



506909466.1  
 

-3-  
 

 Maturity Date means the date that is twelve (12) calendar months from the Delivery 

Date; provided if that date is not a business day in the State of Washington, then the Maturity 

Date shall be the immediately preceding business day. 

 Note Fund means the Port of Chelan County Note Redemption Fund, created or 

maintained in the office of the Director of Finance of the Port pursuant to Section 11 of this 

resolution. 

 Note Register means the books or records maintained by the Note Registrar containing 

the name and mailing address of the owner of the Notes or nominee of such owner and the 

principal amount outstanding. 

 Note Registrar means the Director of Finance.  

 Notes mean the Series A Note and the Series B Note. 

 Outstanding Principal Balance of each Note means on any particular day the aggregate 

dollar amount of all Draws that the Port has made under that Note to that day. 

 Port means Port of Chelan County, Washington, a political subdivision duly organized 

and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Washington. 

 Request for Draw or Draws means incremental draws for the Improvements as requested 

by a Designated Port Representative in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 Series A Note means the Port of Chelan County, Washington, Limited Tax General 

Obligation Note, 2023 Series A (Tax-Exempt), issued pursuant to this resolution. 

 Series B Note means the Port of Chelan County, Washington, Limited Tax General 

Obligation Note, 2023 Series B (Taxable), issued pursuant to this resolution. 

 Term Sheet means the commitment letter or proposal dated July 31, 2023 from the Bank, 

and included as Exhibit B. 



506909466.1  
 

-4-  
 

Variable Rate means a rate of interest equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate 

(Index).  

 Rules of Interpretation.  In this resolution, unless the context otherwise requires: 

 (a) The terms “hereby,” “hereof,” “hereto,” “herein,” “hereunder” and any similar 

terms, as used in this resolution, refer to this resolution as a whole and not to any particular 

article, section, subdivision or clause hereof, and the term “hereafter” shall mean after, and the 

term “heretofore” shall mean before, the date of this resolution; 

 (b) Words of the masculine gender shall mean and include correlative words of the 

feminine and neuter genders and words importing the singular number shall mean and include 

the plural number and vice versa; 

 (c) Words importing persons shall include firms, associations, partnerships (including 

partnerships), trusts, corporations and other legal entities, including public bodies, as well as 

natural persons; 

 (d) Any headings preceding the text of the several articles and sections of this 

resolution, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be solely 

for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this resolution, nor shall they affect 

its meaning, construction or effect; 

 (e) All references herein to “articles,” “sections” and other subdivisions or clauses are 

to the corresponding articles, sections, subdivisions or clauses hereof. 

 Section 2. Authorization of Notes.  For the purpose of establishing a line of credit to 

finance and refinance the Improvements, the Port shall issue its limited tax general obligation 

notes, in the form of a revolving draw down obligation, in the aggregate initial principal amount 

collectively of not to exceed $5,000,000 (the “Notes”).  The Notes shall be sold in two series, 



506909466.1  
 

-5-  
 

with one series bearing interest at a federally tax-exempt rate (the “Series A Note”) and one 

series bearing interest at a federally taxable rate (the “Series B Note”). 

 (a) Note Details.  The Series A Note shall be designated as the “Port of Chelan 

County, Washington, Limited Tax General Obligation Note, 2023 Series A (Tax-Exempt),” and 

the Series B Note shall be designated as the “Port of Chelan County, Washington, Limited Tax 

General Obligation Note, 2023 Series B (Taxable).  Each Note shall be dated as of its Delivery 

Date, shall be issued as a single instrument, in fully registered form in the denomination of not to 

exceed $5,000,000, provided that the principal amount due and owing thereunder shall be 

measured by the total Drawings made, as evidenced by the Loan Draw Record attached to the 

Notes.  The Outstanding Principal Balance of the Notes collectively shall not exceed $5,000,000.  

The Notes shall bear interest on unpaid principal from the date of each Draw thereunder at the 

Interest Rate, payable quarterly on each January 15, April 15, July 15, and October 15, 

commencing on October 15, 2023, with final payment of all outstanding and unpaid principal 

and interest due at maturity on the Maturity Date.  Interest shall be calculated on an actual 

number of days elapsed over a year of 360 days basis.  Payments made to the Bank shall be 

applied first to accrued interest and then to principal as of the date actually received by the Bank. 

 (b) Draws.  The Notes are intended to be revolving obligations, so that principal 

amounts repaid may be re-paid and re-borrowed until the maturity of the Notes; provided, 

however that the aggregate Outstanding Principal Balance may not exceed $5,000,000.  The 

available principal of the Note shall be disbursed as borrowings from time to time by the Bank 

upon request from the Port (each such disbursement herein referred to as a “Draw”), as provided 

in Section 8 of this resolution.  Draws shall be recorded on the Loan Draw Record attached to the 

Note, or in such other form as the Port and the Bank may agree in each party’s reasonable 

discretion.  Interest on each Draw shall accrue from the date of that Draw and shall be computed 



506909466.1  
 

-6-  
 

on the basis as described above on the principal amount of the Draw outstanding for the actual 

number of days the principal amount of the Draw is outstanding.   

 (c) Delegation to the Designated Port Representative.  The Designated Port 

Representative is hereby authorized to determine for the Port the amount and the timing of 

Draws and repayments under the Notes, in accordance with procedures agreed to by the Bank. 

 (d) Renewal of the Notes.  The Notes are renewable upon request of the Port and the 

consent of the Bank, which may be withheld by the Bank in its sole discretion.  The Bank has no 

obligation, implied or explicit, to renew either Note. 

 Section 3. Prepayment.   The Notes may be prepaid in whole or in part at any time 

without penalty, with prepayments to apply first to interest and then to principal as of the date 

actually received by the Bank. 

Section 4. Registration.  The Director of Finance shall act as the Note Registrar.  The 

duties of the Note Registrar hereunder shall be limited to authenticating the Notes and to 

remitting money to the Bank on the payment dates as provided therein.  The Director of Finance 

may determine at any time that she no longer wishes to act as Note Registrar and thereupon 

appoint a successor Note Registrar, which may or may not be the fiscal agent of the State of 

Washington.  The Note Registrar is authorized, on behalf of the Port, to authenticate and deliver 

the Notes and to carry out all of Note Registrar’s powers and duties under this resolution. 

 Principal of and interest on the Notes shall be payable in lawful money of the United 

States of America.  Installments of principal of and interest on the Notes shall be paid by check, 

wire, or electronic transfer on the date due to the Notes; provided, however, the final installment 

of principal on the Notes shall be payable only upon presentation and surrender of the Notes by 

the Bank at the principal office of the Note Registrar.   



506909466.1  
 

-7-  
 

 Section 5. Security for the Notes.  The Note is a general obligation of the Port.  The 

Port hereby irrevocably covenants and agrees for as long as the Notes are outstanding it will 

provide for the payment when due of each installment of interest and the principal upon maturity 

of the Notes.  The full faith, credit and resources of the Port are hereby irrevocably pledged for 

the prompt payment of such principal and interest.   

 Section 6. Execution and Delivery of Notes.  The Notes shall be executed on behalf 

of the Port by the manual or facsimile signatures of the President and Secretary of its 

Commission.  In case any officer whose signature shall appear on a Note shall cease to be an 

officer before the delivery of such Note, such signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient 

for all purposes, and such Note may be authenticated and delivered as if such officer had 

remained in office until such delivery. 

 The Notes shall not be valid for any purpose unless Certificate of Authentication in the 

form hereinafter specified in Section 9 has been manually executed by the Note Registrar.  Such 

Certificate of Authentication shall be conclusive evidence that a Note so authenticated has been 

duly executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder and is entitled to the benefits of this 

resolution. 

Section 7. Sale of the Notes and Authorization to Port Officials .   

(a) Sale and Authorization The Port hereby ratifies and confirms its acceptance 

of the Bank’s Term Sheet and to issue the Notes on the terms specified therein and in this 

resolution.  The proper officials of the Port are hereby authorized and directed to do all things 

necessary for the prompt execution and delivery of the Notes and the items required to be 

delivered to the Bank under the terms of the Term Sheet and for proper use and application of the 

proceeds of sale thereof.   



506909466.1  
 

-8-  
 

(b) Fees. In accordance with the Term Sheet, the Port will reimburse the Bank for 

its legal fees incurred in reviewing all documentation relating to the issuance of the Notes, in an 

amount not to exceed $3,500.00. 

 Section 8. Disposition of Drawings Under the Notes.  Following the execution and 

delivery of the Notes, the Designated Port Representative shall notify the Bank in writing each 

time that a Draw is required to pay costs of the Improvements or costs of issuance of the Notes.  

The Director of Finance shall maintain records to confirm the use of each Drawing and separate 

maintain the proceeds of the Series A Note and the Series B Note.  The Drawings under the 

Notes shall be used, together with other moneys on deposit therein and available therefor, for the 

undertaking of the Improvements and for paying all expenses incidental thereto (including but 

not limited to costs of issuance of the Notes, engineering, financing, legal or any other incidental 

costs) and for repaying any advances heretofore or hereafter made on account of such costs or for 

redeeming the Notes.   

 Section 9. Form of Notes.  The Notes shall be in substantially the following form: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
NO. N-1 not to exceed $5,000,000 
 (or as much thereof as is 
 shown on the attached 
 Loan Draw Record) 
  

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
 

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY 
LIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION NOTE, 2023 [SERIES A (TAX-

EXEMPT)][SERIES B (TAXABLE)] 
 
INTEREST RATE: Variable Rate, as provided in the Note Resolution 
 
MATURITY DATE: __________, 2024 
 
REGISTERED OWNER: BANNER BANK 
 501 N. MISSION ST.  
 WENATCHEE, WA  98801 



506909466.1  
 

-9-  
 

 
TAX IDENTIFICATION #: 91-1645638 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED FIVE MILLION DOLLARS (or as much 

thereof as is shown on the Loan Draw Record) 
 
 The PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY, a municipal corporation organized and existing 
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Washington (herein called the “Port”), hereby 
acknowledges itself to owe and for value received, promises to pay to the Registered Owner 
identified above, or registered assigns, the Outstanding Principal Balance (as defined in the Note 
Resolution) of this note, in an amount not to exceed the Principal Amount specified above.  The 
Outstanding Principal Balance on any particular day shall be the aggregate of all funds that the 
Port has Drawn from the date of this note to that day less the aggregate of all principal payments 
made by the Port on or before that day.   
 

Draws made upon this note shall bear interest at the Interest Rate as defined in the Note 
Resolution and shall accrue from the date of each Draw on the principal amount of such Draw is 
outstanding (calculated on an actual number of days elapsed over a year of 360 days basis) and 
shall accrue from the date of each Draw on the principal amount of such Draw outstanding.  The 
amount of interest due on this note shall be calculated as provided in the Note Resolution 
(hereinafter defined).  Interest on the Outstanding Principal Balance of this note shall be paid 
quarterly on each January 15, April 15, July 15, and October 15, commencing on October 15, 
2023, with final payment of all outstanding and unpaid principal and interest due at maturity on 
the Maturity Date.  Draws may be made to make interest payments on this note. 
 
 The Port may make Draws upon this note at any time pursuant to the Note Resolution.  
Draws shall be recorded on the Loan Draw Record attached to this note, or in such other form as 
the Port and the Registered Owner may agree.  Simultaneously herewith, the Port is issuing its 
Limited Tax General Obligation Note, 2023 [Series A (Tax-Exempt)][Series B (Taxable)], 
together, the “Notes”).  The Port may borrow from time to time hereunder; provided that the 
Outstanding Principal Balance of the Notes may at no time exceed $5,000,000.   
 
 Both principal of and interest on this note are payable in lawful money of the United 
States of America.  Upon the final payment of principal and interest of this Note, the Registered 
Owner shall present and surrender this note to the Director of Finance of the Port, as “Note 
Registrar”.  
 

This note is issued pursuant to Resolution No. 2023-02 (the “Note Resolution”) to 
finance and refinance the costs of improvements to Port facilities.  Capitalized terms appearing 
on this note and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given such terms in the 
Note Resolution.  The covenants of the Port in the Note Resolution are incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 

The Port reserves the right to prepay principal of this note in advance of the scheduled 
maturity set forth above, in whole or in part, at any time, with no prepayment penalty.   
 



506909466.1  
 

-10-  
 

 This note is issued under and in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution and 
applicable statutes of the State of Washington and resolutions of the Port, including the Note 
Resolution.  This note is issued pursuant to the Note Resolution for the purpose of stated therein.   
 
 This note is not transferable, except to a successor to the business and assets of the 
Registered Owner, conditioned on such successor assuming all obligations to provide the 
revolving line of credit evidenced by this note. 
 
 [The Port has designated this note as a qualified tax-exempt obligation under 
Section 265(b) of the Income Tax Code of 1986, as amended.][The Port has taken no action to 
cause the interest on this note to be exempt from federal income taxation.] 
 

The Port hereby irrevocably covenants that it will levy taxes annually upon all the taxable 
property in the Port within the levy limits permitted to the Port without a vote of the electors and 
in amounts sufficient, with other monies legally available therefor, to pay the principal of and 
interest on this note as the same shall become due.  The full faith, credit and resources of the Port 
are hereby irrevocably pledged for the annual levy and collection of such taxes and the prompt 
payment of such principal and interest.  The pledge of tax levies may be discharged prior to 
maturity of this note by making provision for the payment thereof on the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Note Resolution. 
 

This note shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under the Note Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall 
have been manually signed by or on behalf of the Note Registrar or its duly designated agent. 
 

This note is issued under and in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution and 
applicable statutes of the State of Washington and resolutions duly adopted by the Port 
Commission including the Note Resolution. 
 

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and 
statutes of the State of Washington to exist, to have happened, been done and performed 
precedent to and in the issuance of this note have happened, been done and performed and that 
the issuance of this note does not violate any constitutional, statutory or other limitation upon the 
amount of bonded indebtedness that the Port may incur. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Port of Chelan County, Washington, has caused this Note 

to be executed by the manual or facsimile signatures of the President and Secretary of the Port 
Commission as of the ___ day of August, 2023. 
 
 

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON 
 
By    /s/    

President, Port Commission 
ATTEST: 
 



506909466.1  
 

-11-  
 

   /s/    
 Secretary, Port Commission 
 
 The Note Registrar’s Certificate of Authentication on the Note shall be in substantially 

the following form:  

 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 
Date of Authentication: August __, 2023 
 
 This note is the note described in the within-mentioned Note Resolution and is the 
Limited Tax General Obligation Note, 2023 [Series A (Tax-Exempt)][Series B (Taxable)] of the 
Port of Chelan County), Washington, dated August __, 2023. 
 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE OF THE PORT 
OF CHELAN COUNTY,  
Note Registrar 
 
By        

Director of Finance 
 The Loan Draw Record shall be substantially in the following form: 
 

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
LIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION NOTE, 2023 [SERIES A (TAX-

EXEMPT][SERIES B (TAXABLE)] 
 

LOAN DRAW RECORD 
 

 Date Amount Total 
    

[Draw][Repayment]    
[Draw][Repayment]    
[Draw][Repayment]    
[Draw][Repayment]    
[Draw][Repayment]    
[Draw][Repayment]    

Repayment    
 
 Section 10. Tax Status.   
 

(a) Series A Note.  The Port covenants that it will not take or permit to be taken on its 

behalf any action that would adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income 



506909466.1  
 

-12-  
 

tax purposes of the interest on the Series A Note issued on a federally tax-exempt basis and will 

take or require to be taken such acts as may reasonably be within its ability and as may from time 

to time be required under applicable law to continue the exclusion from gross income for federal 

income tax purposes of the interest on the Series A Note issued on a federally tax-exempt basis.    

The Port hereby designates the Series A Note as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” under 

Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for banks, thrift 

institutions and other financial institutions. 

 (b) Series B Note.  The Port has taken no action to cause the interest on the Series B 

Note to be exempt from federal income taxation. 

 Section 11. Note Fund.  A special fund of the Port known as the “Port of Chelan 

County Note Redemption Fund” (the “Note Fund”) shall be maintained in the office of the 

Director of Finance.  The Note Fund shall be Drawn upon for the sole purpose of paying the 

principal of and interest on the Notes. 

The Port hereby further irrevocably covenants that, unless the principal of and interest on 

the Notes are paid from other sources, it will make annual levies of taxes upon all of the property 

within the Port subject to taxation within and as a part of the tax levy permitted to the Port 

without a vote of the electors in amounts sufficient to pay such principal and interest as the same 

shall become due.  The full faith, credit and resources of the Port are hereby irrevocably pledged 

for the annual levy and collection of such taxes and for the prompt payment of such principal and 

interest. 

Section 12. No Undertaking to Provide Ongoing Disclosure; Information Provided to 

the Bank.  The Port is exempt from the ongoing disclosure requirements of Securities and 

Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 by reason of the exemption set forth in subsection (d)(i) of 



506909466.1  
 

-13-  
 

that rule with respect to the issuance of securities in authorized denominations of $100,000 or 

more.  

 For as long as the Notes are outstanding, the Port will provide the information currently 

provided to the Bank.  

Section 13. Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Note.  In case either Note shall be lost, stolen or 

destroyed, the Port may execute and the Note Registrar may deliver a new Note of like series, 

date and tenor to the Bank and upon its filing with the Note Registrar evidence satisfactory to 

said Note Registrar that the Note was actually lost, stolen or destroyed, and upon furnishing the 

Note Registrar with indemnity satisfactory to the Note Registrar. 

Section 14. Severability.  If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided 

in this resolution to be performed on the part of the Port shall be declared by any court of 

competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such covenant or covenants, agreement or 

agreements, shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining covenants 

and agreements in this resolution and shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of 

this resolution or of the Note. 

Section 15. Resolution and Laws a Contract with the Bank.  This resolution is adopted 

under the authority of and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of 

Washington.  In consideration of the line of credit provided by the Bank, evidenced by the Notes, 

the provisions of this resolution shall constitute a contract with the Bank, and the obligations of 

the Port and its Commission under said laws and under this resolution shall be enforceable by 

any court of competent jurisdiction; and the covenants and agreements herein and in the Notes 

set forth shall be for the equal benefit of the Bank and any permitted transferee or assignee.   



506909466.1  
 

-14-  
 

Section 16. Effective Date.  This resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

its adoption. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED at a meeting of the Commission of the Port of Chelan 

County, Washington held this 22nd day of August, 2023. 

 
PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY 
 
 
By        

President and Commissioner 
 
 
By        

Vice President and Commissioner 
 
 
By        

Secretary and Commissioner 



506909466.1  
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Form of Request for Draw 
 

[Date] 

Banner Bank 
501 N. Mission St. 
Wenatchee, WA  98801 
(509) 886-8288 
Attention:  Kevin J. Vitulli, Vice President 
Email:  kvitulli@bannerbank.com 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
The undersigned, [Insert Name of Undersigned] the _______________ of the Port of 

Chelan County, Washington, a public body corporate and politic duly organized and existing 
under the Constitution and laws of the State of Washington (the “Port”), under that Resolution 
No. ____ (the “Resolution”) hereby gives notice irrevocably, pursuant to Section 8 of the 
Resolution, of the Draw specified below.  Capitalized terms used herein have the meanings set 
forth in the Resolution. 

 
1. The date of the proposed Draw is ___________, 20__ (the “Draw Date”).   

  
2. The principal amount of the proposed Draw is $______________.   

 
 3. The Draw is to be made from upon the Port’s Limited Tax General Obligation 
Note, 2023 (Check one) 
 ________ Series A (Tax-Exempt) 
 ________ Series B (Taxable) 
 
 4. Wire transfer to: 

Bank Name: ___________________ 
ABA Routing No. ___________________________ 
Credit to: Port of Chelan County 
Account No.: _________________ 
Notify: ______________ [person contact] 
 (___) ___-____ 
Reference:  Port of Chelan County 

4. The undersigned, hereby certifies that the following statements are true on the 
date hereof, and will be true on the Draw Date, before and after giving effect thereto. 

(a) the representations of the Port set forth the Resolution (including those 
incorporated by reference) are true and correct in all material respects on and as of the 
date hereof, and shall be deemed to have been made on the date hereof; 



506909466.1  
 

 A-2  
 

 (b) after giving effect to the proposed Draw, the aggregate principal amount 
of all outstanding Draws on the Notes will not exceed $5,000,000. 

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

By: ____________________________________ 
 Name: ______________________________ 
 Title: _______________________________ 

 
 



506909466.1  
 
 

Exhibit B 
Term Sheet 

 

 



506909466.1  
 

 B-2  
 

 



506909466.1  
 

 B-3  
 

 

 



506909466.1  
 

 B-4  
 



506909466.1  
 

   
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE 

 I, the undersigned, Secretary of the Port Commission (the “Commission”) of the Port of 

Chelan County) (the “Port”) and keeper of the records of the Commission, DO HEREBY 

CERTIFY: 

 1. That the attached resolution is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2023-02 

of the Port Commission (the “Resolution”), duly adopted at a meeting thereof held on the 22nd 

day of August, 2023; and 

 2. That said meeting was duly convened and held in all respects in accordance with 

law, due and proper notice of such meeting was given, that a legal quorum was present 

throughout the meeting and a legally sufficient number of members of the Commission voted in 

the proper manner for the adoption of the Resolution; that all other requirements and proceedings 

incident to the proper adoption of the Resolution have been duly fulfilled, carried out and 

otherwise observed, and that I am authorized to execute this certificate. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 22nd day of August, 2023. 

 
 
       

Secretary, Port Commission 



Y:\10 - Commission Meetings\2023 Agendas\08-22-2023\Working Documents\Option to 
Purchase Chelan PUD HQ Property - Memo.docx 

 
Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Stacie de Mestre 

Date:  August 15, 2023 

Re: Option to Purchase – Chelan County PUD HQ Property 

Please see attached the “Option to Purchase (HQ and Hawley Street 
Properties)” between the Port of Chelan County and the Public Utility 
District No. 1 of Chelan County dated February 27, 2019.  Please refer 
to sections 3, 12.3, and 12.4.  Dan Frazier will give a presentation at 
Tuesday’s meeting on the current redevelopment plan and will be 
asking the Port to waive their option on all or part of the HQ property.   





























































506492474.6  
 

 - 1 - 

 

DEVELOPMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
(INDUSTRIAL COOLING WATER) 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (INDUSTRIAL 
COOLING WATER) (the “Agreement”) by and between CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT 
AUTHORITY, a Washington municipal corporation (“CDRPA”), and MICROSOFT 
CORPORATION, a Washington corporation (“Customer”) is made and entered into and effective as 
of the date on which both CDRPA and Customer have executed this Agreement, as evidenced by the 
dates shown under their respective signatures (the “Effective Date”).  CDRPA and Customer are 
sometimes collectively referred to herein as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

A. Customer is the owner of certain real property located in Chelan County, 
Washington and known as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 222135100060, 222135100071, and 
22235100072 (collectively, and together with any industrially zoned real property in the Malaga 
area of Chelan County hereinafter acquired by Customer, the “Property”).    

B. CDRPA is a municipal corporation pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement between 
the Port of Chelan County and the Port of Douglas County, each organized pursuant to Title 53 
RCW.  CDRPA is the principle economic development agency within Chelan and Douglas 
Counties.   

C. The Port of Chelan County has acquired certain real property located in Chelan 
County, Washington and known as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 222135225010, 222126595130, 
222126595125, 222126595120, 222126595115, 222127595110, 222126595035, and 
222126595025 (collectively, the “GBI Parcel”).  The GBI Parcel is zoned for industrial purposes.  
CDRPA plans to build an industrial cooling water facility serving industrial property located in 
and near property owned or recently owned by the CDRPA or the Port of Chelan County in the 
Malaga area of Chelan County, Washington and CDRPA’s engineer determined the GBI Parcel is 
the preferred location for such facility. That portion of the GBI Parcel used for the Facility (as 
defined below) shall hereafter be referred to as the “Facility Parcel”. 

D. As consideration for the benefits accruing to Customer from the construction of the 
Facility (as hereinafter defined) on the Facility Parcel, and other consideration the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are mutually acknowledged by the Parties, CDRPA agrees to construct the 
Facility and Customer agrees to reimburse CDRPA for CDRPA’s costs in planning, designing, 
acquiring, constructing, installing and permitting the Facility and the acquisition costs associated 
with the GBI Parcel, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as binding 
commitments and representations of the Parties by this reference.   



506492474.6  
 

 - 2 - 

 

2. Completion of the Facility.   

a. Subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, CDRPA shall 
construct or cause to be constructed the improvements and projects (collectively, the “Facility”)  
summarized in the RH2 Technical Memorandum for Project File: RPA 20.0026.19.0001 and dated 
June 30, 2023, as revised on July 15, 2023 and attached as Exhibit A  (the “Tech Memo”).  The 
most current schedule outlining the dates of the various tasks associated with completion of the 
Facility is attached as Exhibit B (the “Schedule”). The Schedule is a current estimate and 
projection of the sequence of steps necessary to proceed with the construction of Phase 1 and Phase 
2 (which are outlined in the Project Budget and the Schedule).  Any task identified in the Schedule 
may occur sooner than identified in the Schedule, subject to Section 2(b)(iii), below.  The sizing, 
capacity and design of the Facility are based on assumptions and information provided by the 
Customer and its engineer as noted in and attached to the Tech Memo. The CDRPA assumes no 
responsibility or liability arising from the assumptions and information provided by the Customer 
and its engineer being inaccurate, inexact or understated. Customer and its engineer reviewed and 
approved the description of the Facility set forth in the Tech Memo; provided, however, that, such 
review was for Customer’s own information and does not constitute its approval of engineering 
sufficiency or performance.   

b. Subject to Section 2(c), CDRPA shall construct, or cause to be constructed, 
all aspects of the Facility in two (2) phases (each a “Phase”) as follows: 

(i) Phase 1, as outlined in the Project Budget of the Tech Memo, shall 
be completed by March 1, 2025 (the “Phase 1 Completion Deadline”).  Even 
though certain elements of Phases 1 and 2 are identified in the Schedule to occur 
later in time, those elements may occur sooner.  The Parties agree and understand 
that Phase 1 includes several components that are necessary for completion of the 
entire Facility, including property acquisition, permitting, design and engineering 
of both Phases and the like (e.g please see footnote to Project Budget in Tech 
Memo, where design and engineering for Phase 2 are included in the indirect costs 
for Phase 1). The Parties agree that all costs and expenses incurred by the CDRPA 
associated with the Facility (whether related to Phase 1 or Phase 2) shall be 
reimbursed by Customer as set forth in this Agreement; subject to Section 2(b)(iii), 
below, and the Project Cap, defined below in Section 3(g). 

ii. Phase 2, as outlined in the Project Budget of the Tech Memo shall 
be completed by October 31, 2025 (the “Phase 2 Completion Deadline” and 
together with the Phase 1 Completion Deadline, the “Completion Deadlines”); 
provided that Customer has provided the CDRPA written notice to continue 
proceeding with Phase 2 on or before December 29, 2023 (the “Phase 2 Notice”).   

iii. If the Customer fails to timely provide the Phase 2 Notice, then (A) 
all work associated with Phase 2 shall cease, (B) Phase 2 will no longer be a 
component of the Facility, (C) CDRPA will proceed with completing Phase 1 only, 
(D) the Customer shall reimburse the CDRPA for all documented reimbursable 
costs and expenses incurred by CDRPA under this Agreement associated with the 
Facility, included those related to Phase 2, through December 29, 2023; and (E) the 
Project Cap (as defined below) shall be reduced by $7,279,800.   



506492474.6  
 

 - 3 - 

 

c. The Completion Deadlines set forth in Sections 2(b)(i) and 2(b)(ii) are 
subject to the following: 

i. CDRPA obtaining the necessary permits and approvals associated 
with the Facility that are necessary to commence construction of the applicable 
Phase on or before the dates set forth in the Tech Memo.  CDRPA will work in 
good faith and use its best efforts (and will cause its contractors and consultants to 
use their best efforts) to procure all permits and approvals necessary to construct 
the Facility consistent with the Schedule. CDRPA will notify Customer in writing 
within five (5) Business Days of CDRPA or its employees becoming aware of a 
delay in permit issuance.  The Parties agree that the Schedule and the Completion 
Deadlines set forth in Sections 2(b)(i) and 2(b)(ii) shall be extended and modified 
as mutually agreed by CDRPA and Customer to reflect the delay arising from, or 
associated with, any delay in permit issuance. 

ii. CDRPA receiving construction bids that do not exceed the estimates 
included in the Project Costs for the applicable Phase on or before the dates set 
forth in the Tech Memo and Schedule. The Parties agree that if CDRPA receives 
bids in excess of the Project Costs, it shall immediately notify Customer of the bid 
amount CDRPA proposes to accept (the “Proposed Bid”), and Customer shall have 
five (5) Business Days in which to approve or reject the Proposed Bid.  If Customer 
approves the Proposed Bid, the Completion Deadlines set forth in Section 2(b)(i) 
and 2(b)(ii) shall not be altered, and Customer agrees to amend this Agreement to 
modify the Project Costs, Budget and Project Cap to align with the Proposed Bid.  
If Customer rejects the Proposed Bid, CDRPA and Customer will work together to 
amend this Agreement to include a modification of the Project Costs, Budget, 
Project Cap, Schedule and Completion Deadlines as mutually agreed upon. 

iii. The Completion Deadlines shall be extended on a day-for-day basis 
for each day of delay caused by Force Majeure, but in no event shall such extensions 
exceed one hundred eighty (180) days in total.  As used herein, “Force Majeure” 
means any events or states of facts caused in whole or in part by war, natural 
catastrophe, strikes, walkouts or other labor disturbance, order of any government, 
court or regulatory body having jurisdiction, blockade, embargo, riot, civil disorder, 
epidemic, pandemic or other public health crisis, litigation or threat of litigation by 
a third party, or any similar cause beyond CDRPA’s reasonable control rendering 
CDRPA or its contractor not reasonably able to continue to perform the Facility 
work, including supply chain disruptions or inability to obtain the materials (and 
when no alternative materials approved by the CDRPA’s engineer  are available) 
to meet the Completion Deadline (but excluding financial inability to perform, 
however caused).  If CDRPA determines that a Force Majeure event has occurred, 
it shall notify Customer within ten (10) Business Days of CDRPA’s determination, 
including an estimate of the delay. 

d. Customer shall reimburse CDRPA for all Project Costs (as hereinafter 
defined) incurred in connection with the Facility subject in all cases to the Project Cap (as 
hereinafter defined).  The “Project Costs” shall mean all costs actually incurred by CDRPA 
(including those incurred before the date of this Agreement) for the development and construction 
of the Facility, including without limitation: (i) all costs incurred by CDRPA for engineering, 
architectural, legal (but excluding any legal costs arising out of litigation concerning the Facility, 



506492474.6  
 

 - 4 - 

 

except as provided in Section 8), planning, project management, construction administration 
services, consulting, and other professional services; (ii) all costs incurred by CDRPA in acquiring 
permanent easements, temporary easements, rights of entry and other real property interests, 
including the acquisition costs of the GBI Parcel; (iii) all costs incurred by CDRPA in applying 
for and obtaining regulatory permits, licenses and other governmental approvals, and for soil 
mitigation and remediation as identified in the Tech Memo; (iv) all costs incurred by CDRPA for 
construction labor, materials, equipment and supplies, including construction contractor payments; 
and (v) all costs incurred by CDRPA for clerical and administrative services.   

e. The construction contracts entered into by CDRPA for the Facility shall 
(i) be on a fixed price, low bid basis (and not any alternative public procurement procedures 
permitted by statute) and (ii) comply with public works and prevailing wage laws in Washington 
State, as applicable.   

f. Subject in all cases to the Project Cap, CDRPA’s obligations to complete 
the Facility are conditioned upon reimbursement for the Project Costs by Customer. 

3. Disbursement Requests.   

a. For convenience of funding, Customer has requested that First American 
Title Insurance Company (the “Title Company”) hold and administer the funds deposited by 
Customer for payment of the Project Costs.  Based upon a construction planning budget prepared 
by CDRPA and approved by the Parties (the “Project Budget”) which is attached as Exhibit C, 
Customer has initially deposited funds in the amount of $8,255,000 for Project Costs (i.e., the 
Phase I amount set forth in the Project Budget) into such account held by the Title Company (the 
“Project Escrow Account”).  Simultaneously with delivery of the Phase 2 Notice, Customer shall 
deposit additional funds in the amount of $8,145,000 into the Project Escrow Account 
(representing the Phase 2 amounts set forth in the Project Budget and the additional funds 
associated with the Project Cap). If the Phase 2 Notice is not delivered, Customer shall deposit 
additional funds in the amount of $865,200 into the Project Escrow Account (representing the 
balance associated with the modified Project Cap resulting from the removal of Phase 2 from the 
work to be completed).  Funds held in the Project Escrow Account are the sole property of 
Customer and subject only to its instructions.  The Parties hereby acknowledge that the Project 
Escrow Account will be established for administrative convenience only and CDRPA shall not 
have any interest in the Project Escrow Account.  Nevertheless, whether there are funds in the 
Project Escrow Account or the amount thereof will not limit Customer’s obligations under this 
Agreement.   

b. On a monthly basis, not later than the 20th day of each month, CDRPA shall 
submit to Customer a “Disbursement Request” in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D for review 
as provided herein. 

c. Not later than the twentieth (20th) day of each month until all Facility 
construction is completed (each a “Reconciliation Date”), CDRPA shall provide Customer written 
report of the following (each, a “Reconciliation Report”):   

i. The total amount of Project Costs paid by CDRPA for the preceding 
month (each a “Reconciliation Period”), provided, the Parties expressly acknowledge that the first 
Reconciliation Period shall include the Project Costs incurred by CDRPA prior to the Effective 
Date in accordance with the Project Budget; 



506492474.6  
 

 - 5 - 

 

ii. An updated Project Budget, indicating any increase or decrease 
thereto; 

iii. A schedule of values covering the Reconciliation Period;  

iv. Such other information as is reasonably requested by Customer to 
verify the costs related to each Disbursement Request and the Project Costs expended during such 
Reconciliation Period; and   

v. The Customer acknowledges and agrees that the first Disbursement 
Request and the first Reconciliation Report shall include all Project Costs incurred through the 
date of the first Disbursement Request, which will include Project Costs incurred prior to the 
Effective Date in accordance with the Project Budget. 

d. Customer will review the information and documentation provided to it 
under Section 3(b) or Section 3(c) within ten (10) business days after its receipt thereof (the 
“Review Period”) to determine if the cost of each Disbursement Request and the Project Costs is 
within the then-current Project Budget and that the estimated cost to complete the Facility is not 
out of balance with the remaining Project Budget.  If Customer does not complete its review within 
the Review Period, it will be deemed to have waived its right to conduct such review and/or object 
with respect to the applicable Reconciliation Period (but not for any future periods).  If Customer 
determines that the costs are not accurately reflected, the Project Budget is out of balance with the 
estimated cost to complete or if either Party determines there was any error in a previous 
Disbursement Request, then the Parties will negotiate in good faith to properly add or subtract to 
such discrepancy from the next Disbursement Request. 

e. On the first Business Day following the Review Period, provided that 
Customer has not objected to the Disbursement Request, Customer shall instruct Title Company 
to disburse funds from the Project Escrow Account in the amount of the Disbursement Request to 
CDRPA (or, at CDRPA’s election, directly to any contractors) to pay the Project Costs set forth in 
the applicable Disbursement Request.  The Disbursement Request form includes a deduction for 
any applicable retainage under CDRPA’s construction contracts and any adjustment as required 
under Section 3(d).  Customer shall instruct the Title Company to release funds to CDRPA for 
payment of retainage only upon reasonable evidence that the applicable release conditions for the 
payment of such retainage in such contract or subcontract, as applicable, have been satisfied.  

f. Customer shall not be required to make any payment under a Disbursement 
Request that is inconsistent with the Tech Memo, unless such inconsistency or modification 
was previously approved by Customer and CDRPA. 

g. In the event that the aggregate of the Project Costs exceeds the amount of 
Sixteen Million Four Hundred Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($16,400,000.00) (the “Project 
Cap”), Customer shall not be responsible for any such shortfall and CDRPA shall complete the 
Facility without reimbursement from the Project Escrow Account or Customer for said 
shortfall, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties.  The Project Cap is higher than the Project 
Budget to provide for additional Project Costs that CDRPA may incur that are currently not 
known or are not accounted for in the Project Budget.  Any addition to the Project Budget is 
subject to Customer’s written approval.   



506492474.6  
 

 - 6 - 

 

h. In no event will Customer be responsible for reimbursement of any costs 
associated with the construction that exceed the scope of the Facility described in this 
Agreement and the Tech Memo, unless such modification was previously approved by 
Customer and CDRPA in writing.  Change orders to construction contracts entered by CDRPA 
that are within the scope of the Facility and Project Cap are expressly permitted without the 
approval of Customer and are deemed to amend the Project Budget.  Any change order 
amending the scope of the Facility or that will result in the total Project Costs exceeding the 
Project Cap require the advance approval of the Customer.  

i. It is expressly acknowledged and understood that the Facility may 
ultimately benefit, incidentally or directly, and may ultimately be used to serve, properties other 
than and in addition to the Property as defined herein.  No such benefit or use shall excuse or 
otherwise reduce Customer’s obligation to reimburse CDRPA pursuant to this Agreement.   

j. CDRPA and Customer will enter into a separate Customer Service 
Agreement setting forth the terms and conditions of Customer’s use of the Facility.  The Parties 
agree that such Customer Service Agreement shall be fully executed prior to Customer’s 
connection to and utilization of the Facility. 

4. Public Project.  CDRPA shall be responsible for ensuring that all work related to 
the construction and/or installation of the Facility shall comply with Washington State Public 
Works bid statutes, as applicable.   

5. Indemnification and Insurance.  Customer will defend, indemnify and hold the 
CDRPA harmless for and against any and all costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), claims 
and damages, of any kind whatsoever, which may be made, incurred by or asserted against the 
CDRPA or third parties resulting from damage to property or injury to person to the extent caused 
by the alleged or adjudged negligence or willful misconduct of the Customer arising from the work 
to be performed by the Customer or its agents.  The CDRPA will defend, indemnify and hold the 
Customer harmless for and against any and all costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), claims 
and damages, of any kind whatsoever, which may be made, incurred by or asserted against the 
Customer resulting from damage to the property or injury to person to the extent caused by the 
alleged or adjudged negligence or willful misconduct of the CDRPA or its agents arising from the 
work by the CDRPA or its agents.  In addition, the CDRPA will require all contractors and 
subcontractors to obtain commercially reasonable insurance policies for any work on the Facility 
and will require that Customer be added as the additional insured under all such insurance policies.  
A Party’s duty to indemnify under this section, including the duty and cost to defend, shall not 
apply to claims for damages arising under this Agreement resulting from the sole negligence of 
the other Party, its affiliates, and their respective employees and agents.  A Party’s duty to 
indemnify under this section, including the duty and cost to defend resulting from the concurrent 
negligence of the other Party, shall apply to the extent of negligence of the Indemnifying Party, its 
agents or employees. 

6. Other Facility Users.  Customer has agreed to fund the Project Costs and if real 
property that is also serviced by the Facility is sold, transferred, conveyed, developed or leased for 
industrial, commercial, or other non-residential uses by third parties desiring to utilize the Facility 
(“Serviced Property”) Customer may wish to seek recovery of portions of the amounts it funded 
for the Project Costs. In such event, CDPRA shall notify Customer in writing of such proposed 
third party use, and Customer shall have thirty (30) days after its receipt of notice in which to reply 
to CDRPA in writing indicating whether it wishes to seek recovery of portions of the Project Costs.  



506492474.6  
 

 - 7 - 

 

If Customer notifies CDRPA that it wishes to seek recovery, then Customer and CDRPA shall 
have an additional thirty (30) days after CDRPA’s receipt of Customer’s election in which to 
negotiate in good faith an agreement whereby the new user of a Serviced Property contributes an 
equitable amount towards the Project Costs (such agreement, the “Cost Recovery Agreement”).  If 
Customer fails to notify CDRPA within its initial thirty (30) day notification period, or if the 
Parties negotiate in good faith and still fail to reach an agreement for the terms of the Cost 
Recovery Agreement within the specified additional thirty (30) days, then Customer shall forfeit 
its rights to recovery with respect to such third party.  The foregoing shall not apply, however,  to 
(i) any property now owned or hereafter acquired by CDRPA or any constituent port of CDRPA 
or (ii) any other property now owned or hereafter acquired by Customer.  All third-party costs 
related to the Cost Recovery Agreement and those costs incurred by CDRPA in forming, creating, 
and administering the Cost Recovery Agreement, shall be the sole responsibility of Customer and 
are not included in the Project Cap.     

7. Attorneys’ Fees; Remedies.   

a. The Parties agree that in the event that an attorney’s services are required to litigate 
any portion of this Agreement, the substantially prevailing party in any litigation shall be 
reimbursed its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs related to enforcement of the Agreement and 
collection related thereto, including any appeals therefrom.  

 b. If CDRPA defaults in its obligation to complete all or any of the Phases comprising 
the Facility in accordance with this Agreement (the “Uncompleted Work”), Customer’s remedies 
for such default shall be limited to (i) specific performance of CDRPA’s obligation with respect 
to the Uncompleted Work; which suit may be brought following a sixty (60) day advance written 
notice of default to the CDRPA specifying the Uncompleted Work, and diligent steps have not 
commenced by the CDRPA to complete the Uncompleted Work within said 60 day period; or 
(ii) on not less than sixty (60) days prior written notice to CDRPA, the right to buy-out the Facility 
and the Facility Parcel (collectively, the rights in this clause (ii) are called the “Buyout Rights”).   

 c. If Customer exercises its Buyout Rights, then (i) CDRPA shall cooperate with 
Customer, including by assigning plans and specifications for the work and, to the extent 
assignable, licenses, easements, entry rights and similar agreements that CDRPA owns, controls 
or has rights thereunder; (ii) all outstanding Project Costs incurred by the CDRPA, together with 
costs arising from termination of existing construction contracts for the Facility, through the date 
of closing of the Buyout Rights, shall be paid to CDRPA by the Customer at closing of the Buyout 
Rights; and (iii) the Parties shall cooperate to process a boundary line adjustment to create the 
Facility Parcel as one or more legal lots of records.  Closing shall take place as soon as reasonably 
practicable following completion of the boundary line adjustment.  The Facility shall be transferred 
by quitclaim Bill of Sale, and the Facility Parcel shall be transferred by Quitclaim Deed. In the 
event the Customer exercise the Buyout Rights, Section 7(a) shall not apply to such exercise of 
remedies.  

 d. As a material part of the consideration for this Agreement, Customer specifically 
waives all claims for loss of business, lost profits, consequential damages, special damages, 
expectation damages, reliance damages and all similar damages and variations thereof. 

8. Binding on Heirs, Successors and Assigns.  All the covenants, agreement terms, and 
conditions contained in this Agreement shall apply to and be binding upon CDRPA and Customer 
and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.   



506492474.6  
 

 - 8 - 

 

9. Savings Clause.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed so as to require the 
commission of any act contrary to law, and wherever there is any conflict between any provisions of 
this Agreement and any statute, law, public regulation, or ordinance, the latter shall prevail, but in 
such event, the provisions of this Agreement affected shall be curtailed and limited only to the extent 
necessary to bring it within legal requirements.   

10. Incorporation.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the Parties with 
respect to the matters set forth herein.  Unless set forth herein in writing, neither Party shall be bound 
by any statements or representations made, and each agrees that there are no such statements or 
representations being relied upon in making this Agreement, except as expressly set forth herein.  No 
alterations, changes, or amendments to this Agreement will be binding upon either Party unless such 
Party has executed a written statement acknowledging such alteration, change, or amendment. 

11. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the State of 
Washington and venue for any action arising from this Agreement shall be in Chelan County, 
Washington. 

12. Waiver.  No provision of this Agreement shall be modified unless in writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the Parties.  Waiver by a Party of any provision hereof in any 
instance shall not constitute a waiver of any other instance. 

13. No Entity Created.  The Parties agree that there is no separate organization or entity 
created by this Agreement.  Nothing herein shall be deemed the creation of a partnership or similar 
entity between the Parties.   

14. Default and Remedies.  In the event of a default under this Agreement, the non-
defaulting Party shall provide the defaulting Party with prompt written notice reasonably detailing 
the nature of the default, and the defaulting Party shall be allowed thirty (30) days from receipt of 
notice to cure such default.  In the event a default continues beyond thirty (30) days, the non-
defaulting Party shall be entitled to specifically enforce the obligations set forth in the Agreement, 
seek injunctions and other equitable relief.  The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to and 
shall not preclude any other remedy available to the Parties under applicable law or in equity; 
except however Customer’s remedies are limited as set forth in Section 8(b). 

15. Notices.  Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other party or if 
mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or if emailed to any email address 
listed below (if no email address is listed, notices shall not be served by email) to the following 
addresses:   

    CDRPA: 
 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority   
Attn: Chief Executive Officer  

   One Campbell Parkway Suite A, 
East Wenatchee, WA 98802 

 
With a copy to: 

 
Ogden Murphy Wallace, P.L.L.C. 
Attn:  Peter A. Fraley, Esq.   
One Fifth Street, Suite 200  



506492474.6  
 

 - 9 - 

 

Wenatchee, WA 98801 
 

    Customer: 
 
    Microsoft Corporation 

CELA – CO+I 
One Microsoft Way 
Redmond, WA 98052 
Attn: Corporate, External & Legal Affairs 
Email: mciocela@microsoft.com 
 
With a copy to: 
 
K&L Gates LLP 
925 Fourth Avenue, Suite 2900 
Seattle, WA 98104 
Attn: Charles Royce 
Email: Charles.Royce@klgates.com 

16. Interpretation and Authority.  This Agreement has been submitted to the scrutiny 
of the Parties and their legal counsel, if desired, and it shall be given a fair and reasonable 
interpretation in accordance with its words, without consideration to or weight given to its being 
drafted by any Party or its legal counsel.  All words used in the singular shall include the plural; the 
present tense shall include the future tense; and the masculine gender shall include the feminine and 
neuter genders.  Each person that signs below represents and warrants that they have the full authority 
to sign this Agreement and to bind the entity for which they are signing to the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement. 

 
 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank] 



506492474.6  
 

Signature Page to Development and Reimbursement Agreement (Industrial Cooling Water) 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have set their hands effective the Effective Date.  
 

CDRPA: 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY  

 
      

Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer    
Date:       

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 
 

      
CDRPA Counsel 

 
 

 
 

 
[signatures continue on following page] 

 
 
  



506492474.6  
 

Signature Page to Development and Reimbursement Agreement (Industrial Cooling Water) 

 

 
Customer: 

 
MICROSOFT CORPORATION 

 
By:   

      Name: ____________________________ 
 Title: _____________________________ 

 Date: _____________________________ 
 



506492474.6  
 

 Exhibit A 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

TECH MEMORANDUM 
(attached hereto) 

 



7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech
Memo_Final_20230715.docx

TECHNICAL
MEMORANDUM

Introduction
The Microsoft Corporation (MSFT) has proposed to construct three data center buildings on property it
owns near Malaga, Washington (parcel nos. 222135100060, 222135100072, and 222135100071). The
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority’s (Port), owns additional property located west of the MSFT
property. MSFT has expressed interest in potentially constructing six total data center buildings.

Since Malaga does not have a public sewer system, one of the considerations for industrial
development and the efficient use of available property is disposal of cooling water that generally
consists of recycled potable water used by data center cooling systems. In the RH2 Engineering, Inc.,
(RH2) Preliminary Utility Service Study (Study) [1], several alternatives were evaluated for cooling water
disposal, including conveyance to an existing purveyor (i.e. connection into the City of Wenatchee’s
(City) sewer system and wastewater treatment plant). Connection to the City’s sewer system was
determined to be infeasible due to the high capital costs. A direct surface water discharge to the
Columbia River was also preliminarily explored with the Washington State Department of Ecology

Client: Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

Project: Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Facility/Utility

Project File: RPA 20.0026.19.0001

Composed by: Katrina Olson, EIT

Reviewed by: Adam Neff, LHG, and Eric Smith, PE

Subject: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal

Date: June 30, 2023

Signed:
6/15/2022
REV.
7/15/2023

Signed:
6/15/2022
REV.
7/15/2023



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 2

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

(Ecology), but uncertainties were identified related to the heat load allocation for new discharges to
this reach of the Columbia River based on the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s Columbia and
Lower Snake Rivers Temperature Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) [2]. These uncertainties, and the
long lead time in potentially procuring a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
permit for this discharge, made this option infeasible.

The Study recommended some form of disposal of the cooling water at a dedicated disposal site in the
Malaga area. The Port owns property referred to herein as the GBI site (Parcel No’s. 222127595110,
222126595115, 222126595120, 222126595125, and 2221659130) (Figure 1 and Exhibit 1). The Port
has asked RH2 to evaluate the feasibility of using the GBI site the disposal of cooling water (i.e.
recycled, non-contact, potable water used in cooling systems).

Figure 1 – Vicinity Map

GBI Site Description
The GBI site is located on the right bank of the Columbia River approximately 7 miles downstream from
the George Sellar bridge (Highway (Hwy) 285), extending south from the shoreline, across the railroad



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 3

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

tracks, up onto a gently sloping bench, and then extending further south up on to a higher bedrock
(basalt) bench near the Malaga Alcoa Highway at approximately 810 feet in elevation above mean sea
level. The lower bench area has been heavily altered from previous gravel mining activities, leaving
many humps, hills, and depressions. The gravel mining left elevated areas of what is assumed to be
native ground surrounding the existing electrical transmission line power poles and guy wires, as well
as along a natural gas main that bisects the property from east to west.

The GBI site is currently vacant land, though in the past much of it was used for agricultural and
residential purposes. There is a considerable amount of debris scattered across the site, primarily of
agricultural origin (stockpiled irrigation materials), defunct irrigation systems, and miscellaneous
consumer garbage/debris scattered about.

Historical Uses
The GBI site was originally used for residential and commercial orchard activities from the early 1900s
through approximately 1977, when gravel mining activities started. Gravel mining continued on the
northern portion of the site. The house was removed prior to 1990 to accommodate additional gravel
mining, which continued until approximately 1998. The last orchard was removed in 2013.

Site Geology
The site geology consists of approximately 100 vertical feet of glacial outburst flood related alluvium
overlaying a variable topography of basalt bedrock and capped, in some places, by a few feet of loess.
The alluvium is comprised of a wide range of materials from units of cobble-sized gravels with very
little sand to medium plasticity clay but is primarily coarse sands and gravels up to 1 foot in diameter.

The majority of the gravel mining appears to have concentrated on the gravel layers between the base
of the loess and the top of the clay layer, approximately 15 to 20 feet below the estimated original
ground surface.

Contaminated Soils
Due to the historic orchard activities, portions of the original topsoil, where they remain, are
contaminated with lead and arsenic at levels greater than cleanup levels (Model Toxics Control Act
(MTCA) Method A). There were detections of dichlorodiphenyldichloroethylene (DDE) (a derivative of
dichlorodiphenyltrichloroethane (DDT)) present on the site but at concentrations generally below
application cleanup standards (one sample was above the level for the protection of groundwater).
These soils will need to be mitigated or remediated as part of any development disturbances, which
may involve consolidation and/or capping of the soils. Additional sampling is necessary to fully quantify
the concentrations and extents.

Existing Easements and Land Restrictions
Use of the GBI site is limited by the existing topography, utilities, and easements. The previous gravel
mining efforts left a site of highly variable terrain that is not easily graded or leveled as shown in
Exhibit 1. This uneven topography is mostly associated with existing utilities that bisect the property: a
natural gas main and multiple overhead power transmission lines. A buffer of undisturbed soil remains
around the natural gas main, as well as the transmission poles and guy wire anchors. These areas are



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 4

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

intended to remain undisturbed by any improvements to the site.

The easements associated with these utilities also limit the ability to use some of the property. The
natural gas easement effectively limits all construction within the easement, although designs for
crossing roads and utilities may be allowed if approved by the utility owner. Power transmission
easements generally preclude structure construction directly below them but may allow for some level
of development (e.g., spray fields).

Other easements likely bisect the property that impact the potential for development, which are
currently being investigated and mapped by a local surveyor.

Disposal Feasibility Analysis Criteria
This analysis will evaluate the suitability and feasibility of the GBI site to provide disposal of cooling
water including the potential discharge from up to six potential data center buildings.

Cooling Water Quantity
MSFT’s design consultant estimated cooling water generation for the purposes of this analysis. The
Clear Water Discharge Demand Technical Memo (Memo) (Appendix 1) summarizes the proposed
cooling water discharge. Cooling water discharge generally will be a function of ambient outdoor air
temperature between May and September. The cooling water discharge from the data centers will
occur approximately 420 hours per year. Cooling water discharge is not anticipated during winter
months. The quantity and discharge rate of cooling water discharge is summarized as follows:

· Total annual cooling water discharge per building: 819,000 gallons.

· Peak month cooling water discharge per building: 11,175 gallons per day (gpd).

· Peak week cooling water discharge per building: 31,825 gpd.

· Peak day cooling water discharge per building: 42,000 gpd.

· Peak hour cooling water discharge per building: 97 gallons per minute (gpm).

Table 1 shows the expected monthly flow distribution throughout each year.



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 5

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

Table 1
Monthly Cooling Water Discharge Flow Distribution

Month Cumulative Flow
(gallons/building/month)

January through April 0

May 46,600

June 145,000

July 243,000

August 346,400

September 37,800

October through December 0

Cooling Water Quality
The Memo estimates that potable water used for cooling will be recycled three times before being
discharged to the disposal system, thus concentrating any background constituents of the potable
water three-fold. It is yet to be determined whether the source water will come from the Malaga
Water District (District), the Greater Wenatchee Regional Water System, or a combination of both.
Table 2 shows the nitrate and total dissolved solids (TDS) concentrations as reported in each
purveyors’ Water System Plan [3][4].

Table 2
Cooling Water Quality Parameters

Source Nitrates
(mg/L)

TDS

(mg/L)

District 4.0 250-300

Greater Wenatchee
Regional Water System 0.2 110

mg/L = milligrams per liter

The parameters shown in Table 2 may potentially exceed groundwater quality requirements if
concentrated by a factor of three and discharged to groundwater. Washington Administrative Code
(WAC) 173-200-040 lists the following criteria for water quality standards for groundwaters of the
State of Washington [5]:

· Nitrate – 10 mg/L

· TDS – 500 mg/L

Based on the values shown in Table 2 and a concentration of three times, source water from the
District would be expected to exceed the water quality standards for nitrate and TDS for groundwater
discharge.



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 6

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

Disposal Alternatives
The general options reviewed for disposal of cooling water at the GBI site include infiltration,
evaporation, or land application for plant uptake. The feasibility of these options are discussed herein.

Infiltration
There are various methods of infiltration available for this purpose. Infiltration would consist of a
discharge to groundwaters of the State, and the discharge would generally be subject to meeting the
groundwater quality standards listed in WAC 173-200-040. As previously noted, water provided by the
District and concentrated three times by the data center cooling systems would be expected to exceed
groundwater quality standards for nitrate and TDS. Some form of mitigation of the constituents
exceeding the groundwater quality standard would likely be necessary if District water is utilized for
cooling. Solely relying on infiltration for disposal of cooling water is not recommended at the GBI site.

Evaporation
Evaporation of cooling water via lined basins is another option for disposal, which would not require
discharge permitting through Ecology or another agency (although typical construction permits are still
necessary). The disposal capacity of evaporation basins was estimated by subtracting effective
precipitation data [6] from evaporation rates assuming a 2-foot-deep water body [7] using real climate
data from nearby weather stations maintained as part of the Washington State University’s (WSU)
AgWeatherNet program. Both were adjusted to approximate a 20-year return period (high
precipitation, low evaporation). Chart 1 shows the annual evaporation and precipitation per acre of
basin. Note that the per acre size measures the water surface area of the basin; therefore, the actual
basin footprint would be slightly larger to account for side slopes above the water surface.



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 7

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

Chart 1
Basin Evaporation and Precipitation by Month per Acre of Basin Water Surface

Evaporation exceeds precipitation in March through October. The total annual net evaporation
potential is approximately 650,000 gallons per acre (gal/acre), and the net monthly evaporation peaks
at around 170,000 gal/acre in July. This distribution aligns well with cooling water use since the most
cooling water will be needed during the hottest summer months. Approximately 1.3 acres of basin
water surface area would be needed per building to provide complete cooling water disposal via
evaporation. Multiple basins would be recommended to provide operational flexibility and
redundancy.

The GBI site is large enough to dispose of cooling water from six data center buildings using lined
evaporation basins. However, a minimum of 8 acres of lined basins would be necessary with additional
basin volume likely needed to provide redundancy. Due to the topographical nature of the site,
configuring such a large volume of basins on the site likely would be difficult and costly, and would not
make the most effective use of the space available. Though it is likely feasible, solely relying on lined
evaporation basins for cooling water disposal is not recommended for the GBI site.

Land Application
Land application of the cooling water is another option that would rely on evapotranspiration to
dispose of the water. Evapotranspiration refers to the combination of evaporation of water from
ground surface plus transpiration by plants. For the GBI site, one potential option would be the aerial
application of cooling water to designated spray field areas covered by a suitable vegetative cover (e.g.
grasses and forbs). For the purposes of estimating evapotranspiration provided by spray fields at the
GBI site, a correlation was devised to use the typical irrigation demand of an acre of pasture (as
defined by the Washington Irrigation Guide [Natural Resource Conservation Service] and WSU
irrigation guidance) for each month throughout the year using WSU’s online irrigation calculator [7].

-50,000

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Ga
llo

ns
/M

on
th

/A
cr

e

Precipitation Evaporation Net (Evaporation - Precipitation)



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 8

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

The irrigation demand was increased by 10 percent to account for evaporation loses during application
per guidance from Ecology’s Determining Irrigation Efficiency and Consumptive Use [8] for impact
sprinklers. Adjusting demand down to account for higher precipitation years, the typical demand was
extrapolated for a wet year with a 20-year return period based on the relationship between return
period and irrigation demand established in the WSU paper Irrigation Requirements for Washington
Estimates and Methodology [9]. Then a factor of safety was applied since sprinklers cannot apply
irrigation perfectly over the entire area of land; Chart 2 assumes a factor of safety of 1.5, but this factor
may be adjusted during design. Chart 2 shows the resultant irrigation demand throughout the year.

Chart 2
Irrigation Demand by Month per Acre of Grass

Irrigation season spans from late March to early October. The total annual irrigation demand is
approximately 440,000 gal/acre, and demand peaks at around 105,000 gal/acre per month in July. This
distribution aligns well with cooling water use since the most cooling water will be needed during the
hottest summer months. This analysis assumes that sufficient equalization volume is provided to
equalize the peak cooling water discharge flows throughout the year and to allow application of the
cooling water through the irrigation season. Based on this analysis, approximately 1.9 acres of irrigated
grass would be needed per building to support cooling water disposal.

The estimated peak month, week, day, and hour process water flow rates far exceed the expected
average flow rate, so it would be impractical to size the spray fields to operate without equalizing the
peak flows, as shown in Table 3. For example, approximately 50 acres of spray field per building would
be needed to dispose of the projected peak hour flow if no equalization is provided. This is because the
projected process water flow averaged over an entire year equates to approximately 2,250 gpd per
building (gpd/building), whereas peak hour flow equates to approximately 140,000 gpd/building.

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

W
at

er
 D

em
an

d 
(g

al
lo

ns
l/m

on
th

/a
cr

e



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 9

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

Table 3
Required Spray Field Area by Design Scenario

Spray Field Design Flow Cooling Water Discharge
(gpd/building)

Acres of Spray Field
Required per Building

Average Annual Flow

(with Equalization)
2,250 1.9

Peak Hour Flow

(without Equalization)
139,680 49.8

In order to utilize this approach, water should generally be applied below the evapotranspiration rate
to preclude water from infiltrating below the root zone. The intent of the spray field design would be
to avoid appreciable discharge to groundwater while maximizing disposal via evaporation and plant
uptake. The root zone for established grass/pasture is estimated be up to 2 feet deep [9]. Based on on-
site monitoring wells, the depth to groundwater is approximately 100 feet below the existing ground,
as measured near the southern edge of the railroad tracks, on the GBI Site, within the base of the
previously mined gravel areas. Groundwater elevations will likely fluctuate by as much as 10 feet based
on seasonal flows within the Columbia River and dam operations at Rock Island Dam.

To keep water within the root zone, the irrigation system will need to cycle applications between fields
and cycle on and off throughout the day at rates below the infiltration rates of the surficial soils.
Specific infiltration rates will be determined during design. It is anticipated that the irrigation system
would use impact sprinklers and an automated control system.

The ideal vegetative cover includes both warm and cool weather grasses (potentially with minor forb
component) that do not require significant long-term maintenance (mowing, re-seeding, etc.).
Transpiration rates can be increased under higher intensity management such as haying if desired, but
the assumptions within this memo are based very minimal to negligible long-term annual
maintenance. Short-term maintenance associated with the initial establishment of the crop is
estimated to include approximately 2 years of seeding, fertilizing, and mowing. Long-term
maintenance may require 1-2 mowings per year.

A grass mixture is a preferred vegetative cover due to its varied growth under a wide range of climate
conditions, hot and relatively dry to cool and wet. When faced with non-ideal conditions many
perennial grasses have the ability to go dormant then re-activate once conditions improve. For cool
season grasses this is typically in July, August, and parts of September; for warm season grasses this is
between Oct and May.

Recommended Approach
As previously stated, solely relying on lined evaporation basins is not preferred as the proportional
capital cost of constructing lined basins will significantly exceed that of constructing spray fields.
However, the difference between the estimated peak day cooling water disposal flow and the average
expected flow over the course of the cooling season also makes it impractical solely rely on spray fields
without some form of equalization storage.



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 10

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

The recommended approach to disposal consists of equalizing the incoming flow with lined basins
(smaller than those necessary for complete evaporation) and discharging to designated spray field
areas. As equalization volume is necessary for this approach, the final design should balance the
evaporation provided by equalization basins with the necessary amount of spray field area. This
approach represents the lowest capital cost option and provides significant flexibility in the
configuration and operation of the system. Further, the GBI site provides a substantial amount of area
that is likely undesirable for other uses, and conversion of some of these areas to spray fields is
practical and provides some beneficial reuse of the water.

Exhibit 1 attached shows the GBI site and the approximated feasible areas for the construction of the
proposed facilities. Areas 1 and 2, which were previously heavily mined, will likely be converted for use
as spray fields. Area 3 will most likely be used for lined basin and pump station construction, and could
provide additional areas for spray fields if needed.

Conveyance and Pumping
Piping will be needed to convey cooling water discharge from the MSFT site to the GBI site. Based on
preliminary sizing, an 8-inch-diameter pipe should be sufficient as a mainline pipe for this utility. This
pipe will likely be installed within or near the edge of the Malaga Alcoa Highway and needs to be
installed in a separate trench a minimum of 10 feet from the potable water . It is anticipated that MSFT
will provide its own conveyance from within their site to connect to the mainline pipe.

A pump station will be needed to regulate flow and convey water from the lined basin to the spray
fields. The exact configuration of the pump station will be determined during final design in
conjunction with the siting of the lined basins and spray fields. It is expected that the pump station will
include a small building to house the electrical equipment, pumps, automated valving and other
appurtenances for distribution to the spray fields. The pump station should be automatically controlled
to allow for remote monitoring and ensure reliability and redundancy in the electrical and mechanical
equipment.

Permitting Considerations
Per Ecology’s Implementation Guidance for the Ground Water Quality Standards, disposal via a
double-lined evaporation basin with a leak detection system would not require a discharge permit
since it is not considered a threat to groundwater quality [10]. The land application of cooling water
may require an Ecology-issued State Waste Discharge (SWD) Permit; however, the regulatory
framework for this disposal system has yet to be determined. An engineering report will need to be
provided to Ecology for review and will ultimately guide the determination of the permit framework.

Additionally, the project also will require:

· State Environmental Policy Act checklist.

· Wetland determination/delineation.

· Geologic hazard assessment.

· Building Permit (for pump station).

· Conditional Use Permit (may be required by Chelan County).



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 11

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

· County Franchise Permit

· Cultural Resources Evaluation

Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs
An Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC) for the preferred alternative of
equalization/evaporation basins followed by spray field application is summarized in Table 4. The costs
are planning-level estimates and have not yet been developed in detail. The indirect portion of the
price includes approximately 35 percent for predesign, survey, design, permitting, construction
administration and inspection based on projects of similar size and complexity. Prices also include 7-
percent annual inflation and a 25-percent contingency. The OPCC for the disposal system described is
$16.4 million.

Table 4
OPCC

Phase 1 Total Cost

Mobilization $225,000

Pipe Extension from MSFT to Site $1,090,000

Site Preparation $530,000

Lined Basins $720,000

Site Restoration Allowance $150,000

Construction Subtotal $2,715,000

Sales Tax (8.3%) $230,000

Construction Total (2023) $2,950,000

Indirect Costs* $1,584,500

Construction Total (2023) $4,540,000

Administrative Cost (5%) $230,000

Planning Level Contingency (25%) $1,140,000

Phase 1 Construction Total + Contingency
(2023) $5,910,000

Construction Year 2024

Annual Inflation 7%

Estimated Total Inflation $420,000

Land Acquisition $1,925,000

Estimated Phase 1 Project Total (2024) $8,255,000

Phase 2 Total Cost

Mobilization $225,000

Spray Field $1,750,000

Pump Station Mechanical and Building $660,000

Electrical and Controls $600,000

Site Restoration Allowance $150,000

Construction Subtotal $3,385,000



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 12

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

Sales Tax (8.3%) $290,000

Construction Total (2023) $3,680,000

Indirect Costs** $736,000

Construction Total (2023) $4,420,000

Administrative Cost (5%) $230,000

Planning Level Contingency (25%) $1,110,000

Phase 2 Construction Total + Contingency
(2023) $5,760,000

Construction Year 2025

Annual Inflation 7%

Estimated Total Inflation $840,000

Land Acquisition $0

Estimated Phase 2 Project Total (2025) $6,600,000

Total Project Cap $16,400,000

*Indirect costs include 3% permitting, 15% design (phase 1 and phase 2) and 15%
construction engineering, and 2% legal fees
**Indirect costs include 3% permitting, 15% construction engineering, and 2% legal
fees

The OPCC assumes that 1.5 acres of evaporation/equalization basins and 9.0 acres of spray fields will
be constructed, but this distribution may change during final design. 1.5-acres of basin could support
flow from one data center building, meaning the basin could be built to support the first building and
ahead of spray field construction.

For the OPCC, the Pipe Extension from MSFT to GBI Site line item includes cost for an 8-inch-diameter
pipe installed within right-of-way (ROW) along the Malaga Alcoa Hwy from the MSFT site to the GBI
site, bedding, backfill, and a hot mixed asphalt trench patch. Cost for roadway grinding and overlay is
not included since it was accounted for in a separate cost estimate for the MSFT site’s water system.
The Site Preparation cost includes a construction access road. The Lined Basins cost includes clearing
and grubbing, earthwork, a double layer high-density polyethylene liner, bedding sand, liner weight
tubes, leak detection, air vent pipe, safety ladder, and perimeter fence. It is assumed that excavated
soils can be reused as fill on-site and will not need to be hauled away. The Pump Station cost includes a
small building, pumps, conveyance from the lined basin, and electrical and control systems. The Spray
Field cost includes clearing and grubbing, earthwork, irrigation pipe, sprinklers, control valves, topsoil,
and hydroseeding.

Other Considerations
It is anticipated based on the above assumptions and subsequent analysis that there will be areas of
the GBI site not needed for the current anticipated cooling water disposal needs. These areas could be
reserved for future use but are not considered part of this analysis.



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 13

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

Next Steps
The GBI site appears to provide sufficient space to feasibly dispose of cooling water from up to six data
centers by using a combination of lined basins and spray fields. It is recommended that this approach
be verbally discussed with Ecology soon to identify any potential concerns. An Engineering Report in
accordance with WAC 173-240-130 will need to be submitted to Ecology for official approval. Pending
the regulatory framework for this system, a SWD Permit will need to be completed and submitted to
Ecology for the issuance of a discharge permit for this system. It is expected that Ecology’s review of
the Engineering Report and issuance of a temporary discharge permit would take 1 year to complete,
with a final discharge permit issued in subsequent years.



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 14

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

References
[1] RH2 Engineering, Inc. (2022). Preliminary Utility Service Study. Prepared for Chelan Douglas

Regional Port Authority.
[2] U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. (2021). Columbia and Lower Snake Rivers Temperature Total

Maximum Daily Load. Retrieved from https://www.epa.gov/columbiariver/tmdl-temperature-
columbia-and-lower-snake-rivers.

[3] RH2 Engineering, Inc. (2019). 2019 Water System Plan. Prepared for Malaga Water District.
[4] RH2 Engineering, Inc. (2019). 2018 Comprehensive Water System Plan. Prepared for City of

Wenatchee.
[5] Washington Administrative Code. (1990). Chapter 173-200, Water Quality Standards for

Groundwaters of the State of Washington. Retrieved from
https://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=173-200&full=true.

[6] Washington State University. AgWeatherNet. Retrieved from
https://weather.wsu.edu/?p=93150&desktop.

[7] Washington State University. Historic Average Water Needs Estimate. Retrieved from
http://irrigation.wsu.edu/Content/Calculators/Historic/StationCropDOY.php.

[8] Washington State Department of Ecology. (2005). Program Guidance: Determining Irrigation
Efficiency and Consumptive Use. Retrieved from
https://apps.ecology.wa.gov/publications/summarypages/2011076.html.

[9] James, L.G., Erpenbeck, J.M, Bassett, D.L., & Middleton, J.E. (1982). Irrigation Requirements for
Washington Estimates and Methodology. Washington State University.

[10] Washington State Department of Ecology. (2005). Implementation Guidance for the Ground Water
Quality Standards. Retrieved from
https://apps.ecology.wa.gov/publications/SummaryPages/9602.html.



Technical Memorandum: GBI Site Feasibility for Industrial Cooling Water Disposal
June 30, 2023
Page 15

7/18/2023 9:11 AM J:\Data\RPA\20-0026-19\10 Reports\Tech Memo\Malaga Process Water Disposal Tech Memo_Final_20230715.docx

Attachments

Exhibit:
Exhibit 1 - GBI Site Disposal Areas Map

Appendix:
Appendix 1 – Clear Water Discharge Demand Technical Memorandum



 

 

Exhibit 1 

GBI Site Disposal Areas Map 



Esri, HERE, Garmin,
USGS, EPA, NPS

222126595125

222126595115

222127595110

222126595120

222126595130

10.5 acres3.7 acres

8.8 acres

5.6 acres

9.5 acres

Saturday Ave

Malaga Alcoa Hwy

Dixie Ln

La
rk

sp
ur

 L
n

Maxar, Microsoft

N
DRAWING IS FULL SCALE
WHEN BAR MEASURES 2”

0 200 400100

Feet

1 inch : 400 Feet

Legend

Constructable Areas

Site Parcels

Parcels

J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026-19\GIS\LOJO COOLING MAPPING.APRX     BY: ANEFF     PLOT DATE: JUL 17, 2023     COORDINATE SYSTEM: NAD 1983 2011 STATEPLANE WASHINGTON NORTH FIPS 4601 FT US

Cooling Water SiteCooling Water Site
CDRPACDRPA

Constructable Areas
Exhibit 1

Vicinity Map This map is a graphic representation derived
from the Chelan Douglas Regional Port
Authority (Port) Geographic Information System.
It was designed and intended for Port staff use
only; it is not guaranteed to survey accuracy.
This map is based on the best information
available on the date shown on this map.

Any reproduction or sale of this map, or portions
thereof, is prohibited without express written
authorization by the Port.

This material is owned and copyrighted by the
Port.

AREA 2

AREA 3

AREA 1



 

 

Appendix 1 

Clear Water Discharge Demand Technical Memorandum  



 

 

 

 

 

Technical Memo 
 

 

Client Company Microsoft ESD Project # C220230-011 

Client Contact / 

Phone # 
Avery Africa Date 06/03/22 

Author / Phone # Chad Mendell / 312-456-2387 Date of Visit  

Project Name Microsoft EAT12 LDO-Energy 

Location Malaga, Washington (in Chelan County) 

 

Subject 

Clear Water Discharge Demand 

 

Comments 

Summary:  The utility to accept the clear water discharge from the Microsoft EAT12 site in Malaga, 

Washington should be sized for 6 Data Center Buildings.  The current need is for 3 Buildings, but 

this anticipated to expand to 6 Buildings in the future. 

 

Clear Water Discharge will come from the mechanical equipment used to cool the data center 

spaces within the building. 

 

General Statistics: 

• Cycles of Concentration:  3 

• Estimated Use Per Year:  420 Hours per Year 

 

Clear Water Discharge During the Hottest Month of the Year (August): 

• Discharge Temperature:  83.5 Deg F Average / 83.5 Deg F Max 

 

   1 Building 6 Buildings Unit 

Peak Instantaneous Discharge 97 582 GPM 

Peak Hour Discharge 97 582 GPM 

Total Discharge on Peak Day 42,000 252,000 GPD 

Avg Discharge Over Peak 7 Days 31,825 190,950 GPD 

Avg Discharge Over Peak Month 11,175 67,050 GPD 

 

 

 



Memorandum    

Page 2 of 2 

 

Comments 

Clear Water Discharge Per Month: 

   1 Building 6 Buildings Unit 

January 0 0 Gallons 

February 0 0 Gallons 

March 0 0 Gallons 

April 0 0 Gallons 

May 46,600 279,603 Gallons 

June 144,991 869,947 Gallons 

July 242,922 1,457,530 Gallons 

August 346,341 2,078,048 Gallons 

September 37,784 226,705 Gallons 

October 0 0 Gallons 

November 0 0 Gallons 

December 0 0 Gallons 

TOTAL (ANNUAL) 818,639 4,911,384 Gallons 

 

 

 

 

 

 



506492474.6 
Exhibit B 

EXHIBIT B 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
(attached hereto) 



ID Task 
Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

1 Cooling Water Discharge System 744 days Fri 8/11/23 Wed 7/1/26
2 RPA/MSFT Agreement Phase 1 0 days Fri 8/11/23 Fri 8/11/23
3 RPA/MSFT Agreement Phase 2 0 days Fri 12/29/23 Fri 12/29/23
4 RPA/RH2 agreement 0 days Wed 8/30/23 Wed 8/30/23 2FS+14 days
5 Phase 1 Design 135 days Thu 8/31/23 Fri 3/15/24
6 Pipe conveyance design 25 days Thu 8/31/23 Thu 10/5/23 4
7 Geotechnical analysis 30 days Fri 10/6/23 Fri 11/17/23 6
8 Stormwater engineering and 

reporting
20 days Mon 11/20/23 Tue 12/19/23 7

9 Prepare site grading plan 20 days Wed 12/20/23 Fri 1/19/24 8
10 Design site access 20 days Mon 1/22/24 Fri 2/16/24 9
11 Design lined pond 20 days Mon 2/19/24 Fri 3/15/24 10
12 Phase 1 Bid 60 days Mon 4/29/24 Tue 7/23/24 5
13 Bid period 35 days Mon 4/29/24 Mon 6/17/24 29,30
14 Award and execution 25 days Tue 6/18/24 Tue 7/23/24 13
15 Phase 1 Construction 157 days Wed 7/24/24 Fri 2/28/25
16 Construct conveyance system 30 days Wed 7/24/24 Tue 9/3/24 12

17 Construct pond 60 days Wed 9/4/24 Tue 11/26/24 16
18 Ph 1 Completion deadline 0 days Fri 2/28/25 Fri 2/28/25
19 EAT 12 Comissioning 154 days Tue 4/1/25 Fri 10/31/25
20 EAT 12 Startup 0 days Mon 12/1/25 Mon 12/1/25
21 Phase 2 Design 120 days Mon 3/18/24 Tue 9/3/24
22 Design spray field system 40 days Mon 3/18/24 Fri 5/10/24 5
23 Design mechanical system 30 days Mon 5/13/24 Mon 6/24/24 22
24 Design electrical system 30 days Tue 6/25/24 Tue 8/6/24 23
25 Prepare landscape plans 20 days Wed 8/7/24 Tue 9/3/24 24
26 Land Use and Construction 

Permitting
290 days Tue 12/19/23 Tue 2/4/25

27 County Pre-Application 
Meeting

0 days Tue 12/19/23 Tue 12/19/23 8

28 SEPA 30 days Wed 12/20/23 Fri 2/2/24 27
29 County Right of Way Permit 20 days Mon 2/5/24 Fri 3/1/24 28
30 County Franchise Permit 90 days Wed 12/20/23 Fri 4/26/24 27
31 Cultural Resource Survey 60 days Mon 1/22/24 Fri 4/12/24 9
32 Public Involvement 90 days Mon 2/19/24 Mon 6/24/24 10
33 Critcial Areas Permit 90 days Mon 1/22/24 Fri 5/24/24 9
34 Preapre CUP 120 days Mon 5/27/24 Tue 11/12/24 22,33,31,28
35 County Building Permit 60 days Wed 11/13/24 Tue 2/4/25 25,34

8/11
12/29

8/30

2/28

12/1

12/19

M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A
Half 2, 2023 Half 1, 2024 Half 2, 2024 Half 1, 2025 Half 2, 2025 Half 1, 2026 Half 2, 2026

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: Project Schedule - Rev1
Date: Thu 7/27/23



ID Task 
Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

36 Construction Stormwater 
Permit

60 days Mon 3/18/24 Mon 6/10/24 11

37 County Shoreline Permit 60 days Mon 3/18/24 Mon 6/10/24 11
38 DOH Septic Permit 60 days Tue 6/25/24 Tue 9/17/24 23
39 Boundary Line Adjustment 

survey
30 days Wed 9/4/24 Tue 10/15/24 25

40 DOE Construction Document 
Review

60 days Wed 9/4/24 Tue 11/26/24 25

41 Phase 2 Bid 50 days Wed 2/5/25 Tue 4/15/25 21,26
42 Bid period 25 days Wed 2/5/25 Tue 3/11/25
43 Award and execution 25 days Wed 3/12/25 Tue 4/15/25 42
44 Phase 2 Construction 142 days Wed 4/16/25 Fri 10/31/25 41
45 Construct Spray Field System 120 days Wed 4/16/25 Tue 9/30/25

46 Testing and startup 20 days Wed 10/1/25 Tue 10/28/25 45
47 Ph 2 Completion deadline 0 days Fri 10/31/25 Fri 10/31/25
48 EAT 13 Comissioning 152 days Fri 10/31/25 Mon 6/1/26
49 EAT 13 Startup 0 days Wed 7/1/26 Wed 7/1/26

10/31

7/1

M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A
Half 2, 2023 Half 1, 2024 Half 2, 2024 Half 1, 2025 Half 2, 2025 Half 1, 2026 Half 2, 2026

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 2

Project: Project Schedule - Rev1
Date: Thu 7/27/23



506492474.6  
 

 Exhibit C 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

PROJECT BUDGET 
 

 
 

 



      
Cooling Water Discharge System (Phase 1 and Phase 2)     
      
Phase 1 Total Cost   Phase 2 Total Cost 
Mobilization  $225,000   Mobilization  $225,000 
Pipe Extension from MSFT to Site $1,090,000   Spray Field $1,750,000 
Site Preparation $530,000   Pump Station Mechanical and Building $660,000 
Lined Basins $720,000   Electrical and Controls $600,000 
Site Restoration Allowance $150,000   Site Restoration Allowance $150,000 
          
Construction Subtotal $2,715,000   Construction Subtotal $3,385,000 
Sales Tax (8.3%) $230,000   Sales Tax (8.3%) $290,000 
Construction Total (2023) $2,950,000   Construction Total (2023) $3,680,000 
Indirect Costs* $1,584,500   Indirect Costs** $736,000 
Construction Total (2023) $4,540,000   Construction Total (2023) $4,420,000 
Administrative Cost (5%) $230,000   Administrative Cost (5%) $230,000 
Planning Level Contingency (25%) $1,140,000   Planning Level Contingency (25%) $1,110,000 
Phase 1 Construction Total + Contingency (2023) $5,910,000   Phase 2 Construction Total + Contingency (2023) $5,760,000 
          
Construction Year 2024   Construction Year 2025 
Annual Inflation 7%   Annual Inflation 7% 
Estimated Total Inflation $420,000   Estimated Total Inflation $840,000 
Land Acquisition $1,925,000   Land Acquisition $0 
Estimated Phase 1 Project Total (2024) $8,255,000   Estimated Phase 2 Project Total (2025) $6,600,000 

      
    Total Project Cap $16,400,000 

      
*Indirect costs include 3% permitting, 15% design (phase 1 and phase 2) and 15% construction engineering, and 2% legal fees  
**Indirect costs include 3% permitting, 15% construction engineering, and 2% legal fees  

 



506492474.6  
 

 Exhibit D 

 

EXHIBIT D 
 

FORM OF DISBURSEMENT REQUEST 
 
Date:  _____________, 202__ 

 
To:  Microsoft Corporation  
From: Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
 
Re: Disbursement Request No. ___ for the Project Costs (this “Disbursement Request”) 
 
 Microsoft Corporation (“Microsoft”) and Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (“CDRPA”) are 
parties to that certain Development and Reimbursement Agreement (Industrial Cooling Water) dated as of 
[_______ ____], 2023 (the “Agreement”).  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have 
the meaning given in the Agreement.  This Disbursement Request is given pursuant to the Agreement. 
 

1. CDRPA hereby requests disbursement from the Project Escrow Account in the amount of 
$____________________________.  This amount represents application of Grant Funds in the 
amount of $____________________________ towards the Project Costs included in this 
Disbursement Request.  

2. The total amount of Grant Funds applied towards the Project Costs to date is 
$____________________________. 

3. The proposed date for the requested disbursement is [_____________, 202__]1. 

4. The Project Costs expended to date are within the [current Project Budget / updated Project Budget 
provided as part of the Reconciliation Report].  

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is the Reconciliation Report with respect to the current [Reconciliation 
Period]2 containing the following information:  

a. The total amount of Project Costs paid by CDRPA for the Reconciliation Period; 

b. [An updated Project Budget, indicating any increase or decrease thereto from the prior Project 
Budget provided]3; and 

c. A schedule of values covering the Reconciliation Period with respect to the applicable 
construction contract containing an itemized list of the work, schedule of values of each 
itemized work, the work completed (in dollars), percentage of the work completed, and the 
dollar amount required to finish the work. 

                                                
1 Insert date that is 10 business days from date of request 
2 First Reconciliation Period includes the Project Costs incurred by CDRPA prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement 
in accordance with the Project Budget 
3 Or confirmation that no change is required to the previously provided Project Budget  



506492474.6  
 

 Exhibit D 

 

 
Chelan Douglas County Regional Port Authority 

 

By: ___________________ 
Name: 
Title:



506492474.6  
 

 Exhibit D 

 

Exhibit 1 to Disbursement Request 

Reconciliation Report 

(See attached) 

 

 

 



Authorization to Sign - Malaga Industiral Area Cooling Water Disposal System - Memo 

 
Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Stacie de Mestre 

Date:  August 16, 2023 

Re: Authorization to Sign – RH2 TA 31 – Malaga Industrial Area 
Cooling Water Discharge System 

Please see attached for Task Authorization 31 from RH2 Engineering 
for the Malaga Industrial Area Cooling Water Discharge System.  This 
task authorization encompasses the engineering responsibilities 
agreed to in Phase I of the Industrial Cooling Water Agreement 
between the CDRPA and Microsoft.  Please note, the Phase I budget 
includes $1,584,500 for indirect costs – engineering falls into this 
category.  The attached task authorization is not to exceed $884,088. 

Staff is seeking Board approval to sign RH2 Engineer Task 
Authorization 31 – Malaga Industrial Area Cooling Water Discharge 
System.      



1
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

Task Authorization No. 31
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

General Engineering Services
Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

June 2023

In accordance with our Professional Services Agreement for the General Engineering Services project,
dated February 19, 2020, this Task Authorization outlines the Scope of Work for Malaga Industrial
Site Cooling Water Discharge System. The work will be performed and invoiced in compliance with
the terms and conditions listed in the governing Agreement and any issued Contract Amendments.

Background
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (Port) has requested RH2 Engineering, Inc., (RH2)
provide assistance with designing a cooling water disposal facility to serve a planned industrial facility
in the area east of Malaga, Washington, on parcel nos. 222135100060, 222135100072, and
222135100071 (referred to as the EAT12 site). The industrial facility will utilize water purchased from
the Malaga Water District for evaporative cooling of industrial server equipment. The water will be
recycled through the cooling system multiple times prior to discharging to the disposal facility. This
Scope of Work builds upon previous work that identified the process to dispose of the discharge
using lined ponds and spray fields. The Port has identified property near the EAT12 site (parcel nos.
222135225010, 222127595110, 222126595115, 222126595120, 222126595125, and 2221659130),
referred to herein as the GBI site, which will be used for the disposal system for the EAT12 site.

This Scope of Work outlines RH2’s services to design the system to provide conveyance from the
EAT12 site to the GBI site and evaporation of the cooling water via lined ponds and spray discharge
fields.

A previous State Waste Discharge Permit (SWDP) has been submitted to the Department of Ecology
(DOE) for the approach outlined in this scope. It is assumed the SWDP will be approved by DOE as to
the concept outlined below.

All deliverables will be in an electronic PDF format unless otherwise noted. Services outlined herein
will be provided to the level of effort identified in the Fee Estimate. If additional effort is required or
additional services are requested, an amendment to this Task Authorization will be mutually
determined by the Port and RH2. This Scope of Work and Fee Estimate excludes support during
construction. It is anticipated that services during construction shall be mutually negotiated following
completion of project bidding.

Original   Page 1 of 11 Pages



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 31
General Engineering Services Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

2
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

Task 1 – Project Management
Objective: Perform project management services, including monthly invoicing, attending planning
and progress meetings, and attending a project kick-off meeting.

Approach:

Perform Project Administration: Perform project administration tasks to include monthly
invoicing and budget tracking, bi-weekly (every two weeks) planning and progress meetings,
and coordination of subconsultants. Meetings will be held virtually.

Attend Project Kick-Off Meeting: Attend a project kick-off and informational meeting with Port
staff. Discuss Port goals, facility sizing requirements, and Port’s level of service standards.
Discuss potential site constraints, such as zoning requirements, sensitive area designations,
geologic hazards, and property line setback requirements. Discuss other project stakeholders
and their roles and level of involvement in the project.

Develop Data Request and Administration: Develop and maintain a list of data and materials
required from the Port.

Maintain Client Communications: Maintain frequent client communications, including phone
calls and emails in addition to the progress meetings.

Prepare and Maintain Project Schedule: Prepare project schedule and update as needed.

RH2 Deliverables:

 Attend kick-off and monthly meetings.

 Monthly invoices.

 List of data and materials.

 Phone calls and email communication as needed.

 Project schedule.

Task 2 – Pipe Conveyance Design
Objective: Prepare complete construction contract bidding documents for the proposed cooling
water main, including bid-ready front-end documents, technical specifications, plans, standard
drawings, and Engineer’s opinion of probable construction cost (OPCC).

Approach:

Prepare 60-Percent Design: Prepare preliminary plans and update the OPCC for the proposed
cooling water main improvements. This work includes the following:

a) Prepare 60-Percent Design: Prepare preliminary design plans to the 60-percent design
level with horizontal and vertical alignment detail of the water main for Port review.
Develop a preliminary OPCC for the 60-percent design review submittal. Submit plans to
the Port and Chelan County Public Works (County) for review. The 60-percent design will
include a geotechnical memorandum discussing the potential for rock excavation during

Original   Page 2 of 11 Pages



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 31
General Engineering Services Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

3
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

the pipe laying process. The memorandum will be based on previous knowledge in the
area, no other subsurface exploration will be completed.

b) Perform Quality Assurance and Quality Control (QA/QC) Review of 60-Percent Design:
Perform internal QA/QC reviews on 60-percent design documents.

c) Attend 60-Percent Design Review Meetings: Attend 60-percent design meetings with the
Port and County (separate meetings anticipated). Prepare meeting minutes if needed.

Prepare 90-Percent Design: Develop 90-percent plan sheets, technical specifications, and bid
documents for the proposed improvements. This work includes the following:

a) Prepare 90-Percent Design: Incorporate the Port’s and County’s 60-percent review
comments and prepare 90-percent design plans. Prepare construction contract
documents to the 90-percent level, including both technical and non-technical
construction contract requirements, general conditions, and special requirements. The
plans and construction contract documents will include the final configurations for
connections, trench, bedding materials, backfill, compaction, and surface restoration,
along with other supporting details and requirements for construction, testing, and
permitting.

b) Perform QA/QC Review of 90-Percent Design: Perform internal QA/QC reviews on
90-percent design documents.

c) Attend 90-Percent Design Review Meeting: Attend 90-percent design review meeting
with the Port. Prepare meeting minutes if needed. Submit 90-percent plans to the County.

Develop Bid-Ready Design: Develop bid-ready plan sheets, technical specifications, bid
documents, and OPCC for the proposed improvements. This work includes the following:

a) Prepare Bid-Ready Plans and Specifications: Incorporate QA/QC and District’s 90-percent
review comments and prepare plans and specifications for bidding and construction.
Prepare final OPCC for the proposed improvements. Submit final plans to the County.

Assumptions:

 It is anticipated that a pipe will be provided to the EAT12 site. No other work on the EAT12
site will be designed as part of this effort.

 No date is warranted or implied for agency response or approval.

 Specifications will follow Washington State Department of Transportation format with RH2
Amendments.

Provided by the Port:

 Attendance at 60- and 90-percent review meetings.

 Review comments on 60- and 90-percent deliverables.

RH2 Deliverables:

 60-percent design plans.

Original   Page 3 of 11 Pages



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 31
General Engineering Services Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

4
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

 OPCC based on 60-percent design.

 60-percent review meeting minutes.

 90-percent design plans and construction contract documents (front-end specifications and
technical specifications).

 OPCC based on 90-percent design.

 90-percent review meeting minutes.

 Electronic versions of the complete construction contract bidding documents, including
bid-ready front-end documents, technical specifications, plans, standard drawings, and
OPCC.

 Two (2) hard copies of the complete construction contract bidding documents.

Task 3 – Site Design
Objective: Prepare complete construction contract bidding documents for the proposed cooling
system site work, including bid-ready front-end documents, technical specifications, plans, standard
drawings, and OPCC.

Approach:

Perform Geotechnical Analysis: Coordinate with a geotechnical subconsultant to perform a
geotechnical analysis. The analysis will consist of soil characterization for use in designing the
evaporative disposal system. The subconsultant will also outline mitigation needs (if any) for
lead, arsenic, and DDT previously discovered in the soil samples that were completed as part of
the Phase 1 Environmental analysis.

Perform Stormwater Engineering and Reporting:

a) Develop an on-site stormwater management system to convey, infiltrate, disperse, and
retain stormwater runoff on site. This system will include conveyance, runoff treatment,
and flow control Best Management Practices (BMPs) as required by the Stormwater
Management Manual for Eastern Washington (SWMMEW).

b) Develop a Stormwater Site Plan conforming to the SWMMEW, including assessment of
both temporary and permanent stormwater and drainage impacts.

c) Prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) meant to control erosion and
prevent sediment and other pollutants from leaving the site during the construction
phase of the project.

d) Develop an operations and maintenance (O&M) manual for the proposed stormwater
facilities and BMPs.

Prepare Site Grading Plan: Prepare an overall site grading plan to support the proposed cooling
water discharge system. The site grading plan will utilize topographic survey information
obtained from a previous agreement between the Port and RH2.

Original   Page 4 of 11 Pages



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 31
General Engineering Services Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

5
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

Design Site Access: Prepare plan and profiles for vehicular access from a public road to service
the proposed cooling water discharge site where needed. Site access will be provided to the
pump house, ponds, and to the spray fields.

Prepare Design for Lined Pond: The design will include sizing of the pond and system
components for a lined pond system, alarm, overflow, and maintenance access.

Design Spray Field System:

a) Prepare pump house design, including the following:

(1) Structural calculations for the pump house, including lateral analysis, roof, shell, and
foundation. Provide internal QA/QC review of structural calculations. Make
recommended updates and additions to calculations per review comments.

(2) Provide detailed design of the building foundation, walls, and roof.

(3) Provide detailed design of building restroom facility.

(4) Design potable water system for a small bathroom facility within the pump house.

(5) Design a septic system to support the bathroom.

(6) Design off-site conduit routing and conductor sizing for power to the pump house.
Prepare and submit an electrical power service application to the Public Utility District
No. 1 of Chelan County.

(7) Design offsite conduit routing for fiber optic communications to the pump house.

b) Prepare mechanical design, including the following:

(1) Design the spray field piping and mechanical components, and size piping and spray
systems for the evaporation system. Plans will include equipment selection, pipe sizes
and materials.

c) Prepare electrical, control, and monitoring design, including the following:

(1) Develop design of electrical systems for operating appurtenances at the pump house.
Work includes designing the lighting system, sizing raceways and conductors, and
preparing design details.

(2) Develop design of control and monitoring sensors to be installed at the pump house,
including construction details.

(3) Prepare a one-line diagram and electrical plan, including branch circuit panel detail,
and other details typical to this work.

(4) Develop criteria and performance requirements for the telemetry system.

d) Develop an O&M manual for the proposed spray field facilities.

Prepare Landscape Plans: Prepare landscape plans meeting County Code requirements for the
proposed improvements.

Original   Page 5 of 11 Pages



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 31
General Engineering Services Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

6
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

Prepare Bid-Ready Plans and Specifications for the Site Work: Prepare 60-percent plans,
technical specifications in Construction Specification Institute (CSI) format, and OPCC and
submit to the Port for review. Attend one (1) 60-percent design review meeting with the Port.
Develop 90-percent plan sheets, technical specifications, bid documents, and OPCC and submit
to the Port. Attend one (1) 90-percent review meeting with the Port. Perform internal QA/QC
reviews on 60-percent and 90-percent design documents. Incorporate review comments and
prepare bid-ready plans, specifications, and OPCC.

Assumptions:

 A single pump house facility will be constructed on the GBI property. The building will be
concrete masonry unit block with a wood truss roof and metal roofing.

 No date is warranted or implied for agency response or approval.

Provided by the Port:

 Attendance at 60- and 90-percent review meetings.

 Review comments on 60- and 90-percent deliverables.

RH2 Deliverables:

 60-percent design plans.

 OPCC based on 60-percent design.

 60-percent review meeting minutes.

 90-percent design plans and construction contract documents (front-end specifications and
technical specifications).

 OPCC based on 90-percent design.

 90-percent review meeting minutes.

 Electronic versions of the complete construction contract bidding documents, including
bid-ready front-end documents, technical specifications, plans, standard drawings, and
OPCC.

 Two (2) hard copies of the complete construction contract bidding documents.

Task 4 – Land Use and Construction Permitting
Objective: Assist the Port with preparation of the permits and design review coordination by outside
agencies.

Approach:

Attend County Pre-Application Meeting: Prepare County pre-application meeting request and
attend pre-application meeting.

Prepare State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Checklist: Prepare SEPA checklist for Port review
and processing. The Port will be the lead agency and publish the checklist.

Original   Page 6 of 11 Pages



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 31
General Engineering Services Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

7
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

Perform Cultural Resource Survey: Coordinate with an archaeologist for cultural resource
survey of the pond and spray field site, if required.

Assist with Public Involvement: Prepare up to three (3) exhibits to assist with the Port’s public
involvement efforts. Attend up to one (1) public event as requested. The Port will take the lead
on any public involvement events and media.

Prepare Critical Areas Permit: Prepare Critical Areas Permit applications for the site work. A
wetland delineation will be required as part of the permit application.

Prepare County Conditional Use Permit (CUP): Prepare County CUP exhibits and application
based on plans and information generated in other Tasks. Attend CUP public hearing.

Prepare County Building Permit: Prepare County Building Permit applications for the pump
house, and prepare supporting documentation as requested by the County. Edit and resubmit
one (1) time based on Building Department comments.

Prepare a Construction Stormwater Permit Application: Prepare a Construction Stormwater
General Permit application. Permit will be transferred to the construction contractor after award
of contract.

Prepare County Shoreline Permit: Prepare County Shoreline Permit application for the pump
house.

Prepare Washington State Department of Health (DOH) Septic Permit: Prepare DOH Permit
application for the pump house septic system.

Prepare Boundary Line Adjustment (BLA) Survey: Prepare BLA survey to establish the area
deemed essential to the cooling water discharge area. This work will also include meeting with
property owners to identify know pipelines and/or easements that may not be present on title
reports. The survey will map all identified easements on the subject property. RH2 will meet
with property owners. If an easement can be removed, this work will be completed by the Port’s
attorney outside of this scope. The BLA and mapping work will be completed by a subconsultant
to RH2.

Prepare Washington State Department of Ecology (Ecology) Construction Document Review:
Prepare Ecology application and submit construction documents for Ecology review.

Assumptions:

 The Port will be responsible for and take the lead on submitting all permitting documents and
paying the associated fees, including processing the SEPA application.

 Construction permits normally procured during construction will be applied for by others.
These may include street use (or right-of-way), electrical, grading, etc.

 No dam safety permit will be required.

 State Waste Discharge Permit through Ecology has been completed under a separate
agreement.

Original   Page 7 of 11 Pages



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 31
General Engineering Services Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

8
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

Provided by the Port:

 Submittal of permit applications and payment of permit application fees.

 Coordination with the public.

RH2 Deliverables:

 Pre-application meeting request and attendance at meeting.

 SEPA Checklist.

 Cultural resource survey, if needed.

 CUP exhibits and application, including two (2) hard copies.

 Building Permit application and supporting documentation, including two (2) hard copies.

 Construction Stormwater General Permit application.

 County Shoreline Permit application, including two (2) hard copies.

 DOH Septic Permit application, including two (2) hard copies.

 BLA Survey.

Task 5 – Services During Bidding
Objective: Assist the Port during the bidding phase of the two (2) design packages developed in this
Scope of Work, which will be bid separately. The first package will be for the pipe conveyance system
and the second package will be for the site work.

Approach:

Develop and Distribute Bid-Ready Packages: Develop and submit the bid-ready packages to the
online center (i.e., QuestCDN) and coordinate the advertisement for bids with the Port.

Respond to Bidder Questions and Prepare Addenda: Respond to questions from bidders
regarding construction plans, technical specifications, or construction contract conditions
during the bidding process. Prepare addenda for plan holders if determined necessary by the
Port and RH2 during the bidding process.

Assist with Bid Opening and Bidder Evaluation: Review bid proposals, including subcontractors,
suppliers, and others proposed by the prime contractor if required by the bidding documents.
Develop bid tabulation and provide a letter of recommendation for award.

Create Conformed Documents: Incorporate addenda into plans and specifications to prepare a
set of conformed for construction documents.

Assumptions:

 The cooling water main improvements and site work will each be bid as separate packages at
different times. The Approach items listed in Task 5 apply to each separate bid package.

Original   Page 8 of 11 Pages



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 31
General Engineering Services Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

9
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

 The Port will pay bid advertisement fees directly, and an online plan center (e.g., QuestCDN)
will be used to distribute the bid documents.

 Up to two (2) addenda per each project may be needed.

 Hard copies will not be generated for bidders.

 The Port will handle the bid openings and construction contract execution. RH2 will attend the
bid openings if requested.

Provided by Port:

 Publication advertisements and payment of fees.

RH2 Deliverables:

 Electronic versions of the compiled bid documents.

 Assistance with up to two (2) addenda per bid package, as needed.

 Bid tabulation and letter of recommendation for award for each bid package.

 Conformed for construction documents for each bid package.

Schedule:

 Bid package 1 is anticipated to bid in the fall of 2024.

 Bid package 2 is anticipated to bid in the spring of 2025.

Subconsultants
 Aspect Consulting LLC.
 Plateau Archaeological Investigations LLC.
 Northwest GeoDimensions, Inc.

Original   Page 9 of 11 Pages

spring of 2024.



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 31
General Engineering Services Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

10
6/26/2023 10:06:02 AM J:\DATA\RPA\20-0026\CONTRACT\TA 31\TASKAUTH NO. 31_AGMT_MALAGA COOLING WATER DISCHARGE SYS.DOCX

Fee for Services
The fee for services shall be on a time and expense basis and shall not exceed $884,088 as shown on
attached Exhibit A, Fee Estimate without prior written authorization of Chelan Douglas Regional Port
Authority.

RH2 Engineering, Inc. Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

_______________________________________

Signature

_______________________________________

Signature

_______________________________________

Print Name/Title

_______________________________________

Print Name/Title

_______________________________________

Date

_______________________________________

Date

Original   Page 10 of 11 Pages

6/26/2023

Paul R. Cross, Executive Vice President



EXHIBIT A 
Fee Estimate

Task Authorization No. 31

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

General Engineering Services

Malaga Industrial Site Cooling Water Discharge System

Jun-23

Description
Total 

Hours

Total Labor Total 

Subconsultant

Total Expense Total Cost

Task 1 Project Management 260 60,630$                 -$                            4,272$               64,902$                 

Task 2 Pipe Conveyance Design 904 182,616$               -$                            23,672$             206,288$               

Task 3 Site Design 1574 319,066$               57,500$                 39,759$             416,325$               

Task 4 Land Use and Construction Permitting 510 105,844$               28,750$                 10,772$             145,366$               

Task 5 Services During Bidding 220 46,470$                 -$                            4,737$               51,207$                 

PROJECT TOTAL 3468 714,626$         86,250$           83,212$       884,088$         

J:\data\RPA\20-0026\Contract\TA 31\TaskAuth No. 31_FEE_TA19_Malaga Cooling Water Discharge Sys.xlsx 6/26/2023 9:53 AM

Original   Page 11 of 11 Pages







 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 1 
{JKS2860733.DOC;1/23058.200009/ } 
4862-2880-3960, v. 1 

PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made by and between the 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority,  a municipal corporation (“Purchaser”), and 
Christopher L. Lytle, a married man dealing in his sole and separate estate (“Seller”), sometimes 
hereinafter individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively as “Parties”. 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. Purchaser owns and operates Pangborn Memorial Airport (the “Airport”). 

B. Purchaser has installed an instrument lighting system to increase landing approach 
efficiency and pilot visual guidance in variable weather conditions, all in the interest of 
the public benefit and safety (the “2022 Project”). 

C. Seller’s real property, consisting of two parcels having a total acreage of 9.52 acres (the 
“Parcels”) was identified as necessary to and impacted by the 2022 Project.  Both 
Parcels lie within the Runway Protection Zone.  Purchaser attempted to acquire both 
Seller’s Parcels in lieu of condemnation, protracted negotiations ensued and Seller 
disputed acquisition of both Parcels. 

D. In order to ensure timely completion of the 2022 Project, the Purchaser elected not to 
proceed with a condemnation action as to both Parcels.  Purchaser acquired one parcel 
in lieu of condemnation to complete the 2022 Project. Seller retained the other parcel 
consisting of 4.76 acres (the “Retained Parcel”). 

E. The Retained Parcel lies immediately adjacent to the instrument lighting system and 
within the RPZ.  

F. Ensuring the security of the instrument lighting system and the RPZ is of critical import 
to the Airport operations, and Purchaser needs and wishes to acquire the Retained 
Parcel.  

G. Purchaser has re-engaged with Seller regarding the necessity of the Retained Parcel for 
the Airport’s operations, and securing the RPZ.  

H. Seller has consented to the sale of the Retained Parcel for the Airport’s needs and in lieu 
of condemnation.   

AGREEMENT 

1. Recitals and Exhibits.  The foregoing Recitals and any Exhibits referenced in this 
Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference. 

2. Purchase and Sale.  Seller hereby agrees to sell and Purchaser hereby agrees to 
purchase real property situated in the county of Douglas, state of Washington, and legally 



 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 2 
{JKS2860733.DOC;1/23058.200009/ } 
4862-2880-3960, v. 1 

described on Exhibit A, attached hereto, having Assessor’s Tax Parcel Number 22210840005 
(the “Property”).   

3. Purchase Price and Terms.  The total purchase price is  TWO HUNDRED EIGHTY-FIVE 
THOUSAND AND SIX HUNDRED and No/100 Dollars ($285,600.00 US) for the Property.  The 
purchase price will be payable in cash at Closing.   

4. Conveyancing and Possession.  At closing, Seller shall sign, execute, and deliver a 
Statutory Warranty Deed for the Property to Purchaser and/or closing agent, free of 
encumbrances or defects of title, except as may be accepted or waived by Purchaser as 
described in Section 5, below. Purchaser shall be entitled to possession at Closing. 

5. Title.  The Seller shall convey marketable title at Closing.  

5.1 The following shall not be considered encumbrances or defects of title, (hereafter 
“Permitted Exceptions”): 

5.1.1 Rights reserved in federal patents or state deeds, and building or use 
restrictions general to the area; 

5.1.2 Existing easements conditions, restrictions, covenants, and matters of 
record not impacting or inconsistent with Purchaser’s intended use; and 

5.1.3 General real estate taxes, special assessment, or other levies assessed 
against the Property not due and payable. 

5.2 Within twenty (20) days from the date of the execution of this Agreement, the 
Seller will obtain a preliminary commitment for title insurance (“Title Commitment”) issued by CW 
Title and Escrow at Purchaser’s sole cost and expense.  Purchaser shall give written notice to Seller 
within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the Title Commitment of any defects or encumbrances, 
other than Permitted Exceptions specified in Section 5.1, in Seller’s title to which Purchaser objects 
(the “Objection”).  Seller shall exercise reasonable good faith to attempt to remove matters to 
which an objection is made.  If Seller is unable to cure the defects objected to by Purchaser within 
twenty (20) days after receipt of the Objection, unless the time is extended in writing, then 
Purchaser may elect either to waive such defects, or to terminate this Agreement. 

5.3 Purchaser shall be entitled, at Purchaser’s sole expense, to procure an owner’s 
policy of title insurance for the Property.  

6. Seller Representations.  Seller represents and warrants to the best of Seller’s 
knowledge: 

6.1 That Seller shall maintain the Property in its present condition until Closing; 

6.2 That Seller has no knowledge or notice from any governmental agency of any 
violation of laws relating to the Property; 



 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 3 
{JKS2860733.DOC;1/23058.200009/ } 
4862-2880-3960, v. 1 

6.3 That there is no litigation pending against Seller or regarding the Property that 
might impact the value of or title to the Property or which may affect the intended use of the 
Property by the Purchaser.  That there are no claims made or asserted against the Seller or 
regarding the Property that might impact the value of or title to the Property or which may affect 
the intended use of the Property by the Purchaser;  

6.4 That there are no financial encumbrances or leases (e.g. liens, judgments, 
mortgages, deeds of trust) impacting the Property or any personal property thereon, that will not 
be discharged at Closing by Seller; 

6.5 No part of the Property contains fill or has been used as a dump site; and 

6.6 Any and all agricultural or other operations on the Property have been conducted 
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  

The Parties acknowledge that Seller, or his predecessors in interest, have historically stored 
and used on the Property pesticides and herbicides that are standard in the tree fruit and 
agricultural industry. 

7. Contingencies.  Closing of the transaction set forth in this Agreement is conditioned on 
the following contingencies: 

7.1 Final approval by the Purchaser’s Board; 

7.2 Purchaser’s inspection and acceptance of the condition of the Property.   
Purchaser’s inspection may include, at Purchaser’s sole option, an inspection of the Property for 
hazardous materials, a soil/stability inspection, and an environmental assessment, all as 
determined by Purchaser. 

 All inspections under this Section 7.2 will be (a) ordered by Purchaser, (b) performed by 
an inspector of Purchaser’s choice and (c) completed at Purchaser’s expense.  Seller hereby 
grants to Purchaser a right of entry for the purpose of performing such inspections.  Purchaser 
agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Seller harmless from any and all activities of Purchaser, or 
Purchaser’s inspection agents in pursuing the inspection authorized herein.  
 

The Purchaser shall have ninety (90) days from the date of mutual execution of this 
Agreement (the “Inspection Period”) to inspect and investigate the Property.  The Purchaser 
shall have the right to enter the Property to conduct inspections and investigation, provided 
that Purchaser shall be solely responsible for restoring the Property to the condition that 
existed prior to said entry.  The Purchaser shall be responsible for any and all damage caused to 
the Property arising from or related to said inspection and investigation and agrees to 
indemnify and hold the Seller harmless in this regard.  At any time during the Inspection Period, 
the Purchaser may provide a written notice of termination to Seller, for any reason.  In this 
event, this Agreement shall be of no further force or effect between the Parties.  If the 
Purchaser does not provide notice of termination to the Seller, the inspection contingency shall 



 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 4 
{JKS2860733.DOC;1/23058.200009/ } 
4862-2880-3960, v. 1 

be deemed satisfied.  
 

8. Time for Closing - Responsibilities of Parties.  The Closing of this transaction shall occur 
at CW Title and Escrow (“Escrow Agent”) as soon as reasonably possible upon the satisfaction 
of all contingencies set forth in Section 7, above, and no later than November 30, 2023.   The 
date of closing or “Closing” shall be construed as the date upon which all appropriate 
documents are recorded and the proceeds of this sale are available for disbursement to Sellers. 

The Purchaser and Seller shall deposit with the closing agent all instruments, documents 
and monies necessary to complete the sale in accordance with this Agreement.  Purchaser shall 
pay all costs associated with the transfer hereunder, including the costs of recording, title policy 
premiums, document preparation, escrow fees, and all other closing costs and real estate 
excise tax, if any.   Each Party shall pay the prorated portion of real and personal property taxes, 
utilities and other assessments based on the date of closing.  Seller acknowledges that the 
Property is not in current use classification. 

9. Indemnification.  Seller hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the Purchaser 
harmless from and against any and all claims, assessments, liens, damages, losses and costs, 
including attorneys’ fees, expenses, or claims of any kind or nature whatsoever arising from or 
related to the Seller’s use, or ownership of the above-described Property, including the 
Purchaser’s attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in enforcing this indemnity and hold harmless 
provision. 

10. Brokerage Fees.  The Purchaser will not incur any finder’s fees, broker’s fees or 
commissions, or similar obligations in connection with the Property acquisition.  Seller agrees to 
indemnify and hold the Purchaser, its agents, representatives, and advisors harmless from any 
claims or any such fees or commissions and all costs and expenses for defending any alleged 
claim therefor (including costs and attorney’s fees on appeal, if any) arising out of the acts of 
the Seller, his agents or employees. Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold the Seller, his  
agents, representatives, and advisors harmless from any claims or any such fees or 
commissions and all costs and expenses for defending any alleged claim therefor (including 
costs and attorney’s fees on appeal, if any) arising out of the acts of the Purchaser, its agents or 
employees.  

11. Default.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  If Seller defaults (that is, fails to 
perform the acts required of it) in its contractual performance herein, the Purchaser may seek 
specific performance pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, damages or rescission and 
return of the Earnest Money, in addition to all other rights and remedies available at law or in 
equity.  

12. Independent Counsel.  Seller acknowledges, understands and agrees that Ogden 
Murphy Wallace, P.L.L.C. represents Purchaser, and Seller has been advised to seek 
independent counsel for legal advice and review of all documents in this transaction.   



 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 5 
{JKS2860733.DOC;1/23058.200009/ } 
4862-2880-3960, v. 1 

13. Risk of Loss.  If prior to closing, improvements on the Property shall be destroyed or 
materially damaged by fire or other casualty, this Agreement, at option of Purchaser, shall 
become null and void, or the Parties may agree to an adjustment of the purchase price.  If 
Purchaser elects to continue with the purchase, all insurance proceeds, if any, shall be payable 
to Purchaser. 

14. Fixtures, Attachments and Improvements.  There are no fixtures, attachments and 
improvements located on the Property.  

15. Modification/Waivers.  To be effective and binding upon the Parties hereto, all 
modifications or waivers of any condition of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by 
the Parties. 

16. Notices.  Notice hereunder shall be in writing and may be mailed or delivered.  If mailed, 
such notices shall be sent postage prepaid, certified or registered mail, return receipt 
requested, and the date marked on the return receipt by the United States Postal Service shall 
be deemed to be the date on which the party received the notice.  Notices shall be mailed or 
delivered as follows: 

 
 TO PURCHASER:   Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority  

One Campbell Parkway, Suite A 
      East Wenatchee, WA 98802 
      Attn: James M. Kuntz, Chief Operating Officer  
 
 TO SELLER: Christopher Lytle 

5690 Rock Island Road 
Rock Island, WA 98850 

 
17. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in 
accordance with Washington law.  Any litigation arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement shall be conducted in Douglas County, Washington. 

18. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 
respective successors, heirs and assigns of each of the Parties. 

19. Encumbrance During Interim.  Seller shall not financially encumber the Property prior to 
Closing, unless the encumbrance is discharged or satisfied at Closing.   

20. Survival.  All representations and warranties made under this Agreement, and all duties, 
rights and obligations of the Parties, shall survive closing and shall not merge with the 
recordation of the Deed. 

21. Attorney’s Fees.  If any suit or proceeding is instituted by any Party, including, but not 
limited to, filing of suit or requesting an arbitration, mediation or alternative dispute resolution 



 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 6 
{JKS2860733.DOC;1/23058.200009/ } 
4862-2880-3960, v. 1 

process (collectively “proceedings”), and appeals and collateral actions relative to such suit or 
proceedings, the substantially prevailing party as determined by the court or in the proceeding 
shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs and expenses incurred 
relative to such suit or proceeding from the substantially non-prevailing party, in addition to 
such other available relief. 

22. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed separately or independently in any 
number of counterparts and may be delivered by manually signed counterpart or electronically.  
Each and all of these counterparts shall be deemed to have been executed simultaneously and 
for all purposes to be one document, binding as such on the Parties.  The electronic 
transmission of any signed original document, and retransmission of any signed electronic 
transmission, shall be the same as delivery of an original.  At the request of either Party, or the 
Escrow Agent, the Parties will confirm electronically transmitted signatures by signing an 
original document. 

23. General Provisions.  Time is of the essence.  There are no verbal agreements which 
modify this Agreement.  Any and all subsequent modifications of this Agreement shall be in 
writing.  Purchaser’s rights under this Agreement are assignable, without restriction. 

24. Effective Date of this Agreement.  The “effective date of this Agreement” shall be the 
date of the last signature set forth below. 

DATED:  DATED:  
 
PURCHASER: SELLER: 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT  
AUTHORITY 
 
 
By:      
 James M. Kuntz, Chief Executive   Christopher L. Lytle 
 Officer 



 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 7 
{JKS2860733.DOC;1/23058.200009/ } 
4862-2880-3960, v. 1 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description 

 
 
The North half of the Southwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of 
Section 8, Township 22 North, Range 21, E.W.M., 
 
EXCEPT that portion thereof conveyed to Douglas County, Washington for road purposes by 
deed recorded under Auditor's File No. 120007; 
 
TOGETHER WITH a portion of the South half of the Southwest quarter of the Northeast quarter 
of the Southeast quarter of Section 8, Township 22 North, Range 21, East of the Willamette 
Meridian, records of said county; 
 
The distances of this description are in grid. Multiply by a combined scale factor of 1.000039927 
to derive ground distances. 
 
Beginning at the Southwest corner of the Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of said 
Section; thence North 89°24'26" East along the South line of said subdivision line a distance of 
30.15 feet to the easterly right of way of North Stark Avenue; thence continuing along said 
subdivision line, North 89°34'06" West a distance of 503.98 feet to the Northerly right of way of 
Grant Road; thence North 89°33'52" East along the said right of way a distance of 62.33 feet to 
the True Point of Beginning; thence continuing along said right of way North 89°33'52" East a 
distance of 59.84 feet to the Southeast corner of the South half of the Southwest quarter of the 
Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of said Section 8; thence North 00°17'47" West a 
distance of 330.84 feet to the Northeast corner of the South half of the Southwest quarter of 
the Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of said Section 8; thence South 89°33'44" West 
along the North line of the South half of the Southwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of the 
Southeast quarter of said Section 8 a distance of 313.35 feet; thence South 37°48'24" East a 
distance of 416.28 feet to the True Point of Beginning; 
 
EXCEPT a portion of the North half of the Southwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of the 
Southeast quarter of Section 8, Township 22 North, Range 21, East of the Willamette Meridian, 
records of said county; 
 
The distances of this description are in grid. Multiply by a combined scale factor of 1.000039927 
to derive ground distances. 
 
Beginning at the Southwest corner of the Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of said 
Section 8; thence North 89°24'26" East along the South line of said subdivision line a distance of 
30.15 feet to the easterly right of way of North Stark Avenue; thence North 00°21'26" West 
along the Easterly right of way of North Stark Avenue a distance of 330.78 feet to the True Point 
of Beginning; thence continuing along said right of way North 00°21'25" West a distance of 
330.76 feet; thence along the North line of the North half of the Southwest quarter of the 



 

Purchase and Sale Agreement 8 
{JKS2860733.DOC;1/23058.200009/ } 
4862-2880-3960, v. 1 

Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of said Section 8, North 89°33'58" East a distance of 
60.12 feet; thence South 37°48'24" East a distance of 416.18 feet to the South line of the North 
half of the Southwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of said Section 
8; thence South 89°33'44" West along the South line of the North half of the Southwest quarter 
of the Northeast quarter of the Southeast quarter of said Section 8 a distance of 313.19 feet to 
the True Point of Beginning. 
 
Also known as, Parcel B, Boundary Line Adjustment No. 2021-10 recorded March 12, 2021, 
under Douglas County Auditor’s File No. 3241049, records of Douglas County, Washington. 



12/13/21, 2:47 PM TerraScan MapSifter - Douglas County Washington

https://douglaswa-mapsifter.publicaccessnow.com/defaultHTML5.aspx 1/1

Appraisal Price $221,000
4.76 Acres

































Maxar

Topographical
Constraints 

Approx. 4.41 acers

Topographical
Constraints 

Approx. 5.37 acers

Po
wer

lin
e E

as
em

en
t

App
ro

x. 
4.7

5 a
cr

es

Power L
ine

Easement

Approx. 1
.79 acres

Topographical
Constraints 

Approx. 5.77 acers

Kemah Management
10.69 Acre

Jeff Quilter 
1 Acre

CDRPA
23 Acres 

Zoned RR5
$685,650

Schaffer
21.38 Acres 
Zoned RR5

Gun Club
10.75 Acres 
Zoned RR5

Topographical
Constraints 

Approx. 5.34 acers

Powerline Easement
1.6 acres

Malaga Springs
101.02 Acres 
Zoned RR5

Adcock
14.29 Acres 
Zoned RR5

Michael
Schoenwald

1 Acre

Craig Quilter
1 Acre

Microsoft
10 Acres

Microsoft
20 Acres

Microsoft
72.5 Acres

Joe Baker
1.16 Acres


	00.00.A. Agenda - 08.22.23
	00.01.A. 08-08-23 Meeting Minutes
	00.01.B. July 2023 Calendar
	01.01.A. Memo - Line of Credit
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	01.01.B. POCC Resolution 2023-02 Operating Line of Credit (PRINT 3)
	DIRECTOR OF FINANCE OF THE PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY,
	Note Registrar

	01.02.A. Memo - Option to Purchase Chelan PUD HQ Property
	01.02.B. Option_ PUD to Port
	02.04.A. Memo - Development and Reimbursement Agreement - Industrial Cooling Water - Microsoft Malaga Project
	02.04.B. Industrial Cooling Water Development and Reimbursement Agreeement
	02.05.A. Memo - Authorization to Sign - Malaga Industiral Area Cooling Water Disposal System
	02.05.B. TA 31 - Malaga Industrial Area Cooling Water Discharge
	TaskAuth No. 31_AGMT_Malaga Cooling Water Discharge Sys.docx

	02.06.A. Memo - Lytle Property - Purchase and Sale Agreement
	02.06.B. Updated Purchase and Sale Agreement - Lytle 2023 4862-2880-3960.1
	02.06.C. Lytle Property Map 4.76ac 06.26.23
	02.07.A.  Memo - Baker Property Malaga - Purchase and Sale Agreement
	02.07.B. UPDATED PSA - Baker Property
	02.07.C. Microsoft Campus and surrounding property - Updated 08.17.23 with Baker Property



